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Solid self-development capabilities have always

been one of the Group’s competitive edges in the market. Adhering to
the pursuit of product quality, the Group continued to invest resources
in product research and development, and strived to optimise and
improve the appearance, functionality and production technology

of the products, and to provide superior-quality products to the market.
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SALES NETWORK
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AN EXTENSIVE NETWORK CAPTURING GROWING OPPORTUNITIES IN CHINA

The Group's sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Chongqging, Tianjin,
Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive network enables the Group to efficiently respond to customer needs
and deepen its market penetration in China.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 1,837 retail outlets, comprising 1,557 concessionary counters and 280 retail
shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macaui.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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With the use of the
customer relationship management
system, launch targeted products and
adjust sales networks according to
the consumption patterns of consumers in

local markets to improve sales efficiency
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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The Group actively promoted

Multi-Brand

that addressed the needs of products from
different market segments, flexibly allocated the
resources and effectively facilitated sound and
stable business development

To All Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to present the audited annual results of Embry
Holdings Limited for the year ended 31 December 2018 on behalf of
the Board of Directors.

In 2018, the negative impacts of Sino-US trade war gradually emerged.
Moreover, China's deleveraging policy and weak domestic demand
further weakened the economic growth of China to 6.6%, the lowest
level in 28 years. Exchange rate of Renminbi to US dollar dropped
significantly since the middle of the year, with a cumulative decline of
more than 5%. The sluggish economy affected the consumption
sentiment and thereby dragged the growth of retail industry.

For the underwear retail industry in China, the competition remained
intense. The progress of urbanisation and the increase of per capita income
continued to stimulate consumption in third- and fourth-tier cities and
drive the consumption upgrade. As the shopping malls and online
shopping platforms are getting more established, consumption channels
and patterns have become more diversified with increasingly pronounced
market segmentation. The market insight and prompt response become
the essential qualities of a leading company in the industry.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Mr. Cheng

Man Tai

W R ek

Chairman of the Group
REETE

As a major brand operator in the lingerie industry in China, Embry
closely monitored the market changes and proactively adopts flexible
strategies to tackle the changes by leveraging its many years of
industry experience and good market sense. Under the challenging
environment, the Group actively promoted multi-brand strategy that
addressed the needs of products from different market segments.
Meanwhile, adhering to the principle and attitude of prudent
execution, the Group flexibly allocated the resources and effectively
facilitated sound and stable business development.

In light of differing product needs of customers with different
consumption power and at different ages, Embry strived to enrich the
product mix and portfolio, in order to increase the market share of the
brands. Under the multi-brand strategy, the Group currently operates a
total of seven brands, namely the flagship brand EMBRY FORM,
FANDECIE, IVU, COMFIT, IADORE, LIZA CHENG and E-BRA. To
achieve all-channel coverage, the brands under Embry tap the
consumption demand and grasp the development opportunities
arising from the market changes with precise market positioning, while
also continuing to reinforce its market position. During the year,
despite the challenging business environment, most of the brands of
the Group still recorded growth. Among which, benefiting from the
rapid growth of the purchasing power in third- and fourth-tier cities,
the offline wholesale brand IADORE recorded an robust growth of
23.17% in revenue.
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According to the report published by a US-based research institution,
App Annie, global consumer spending through apps in 2018 exceeded
US$100 billion, while China's mobile users accounted for approximately
40% of the total spending. Total retail sales of consumer goods in China
grew 9% in 2018 with growth of online retail sales reached 24%,
reflecting that e-commerce has gained popularity and has become the
major growth driver of retail industry. 2018 Deloitte China Mobile
Consumer Survey mentioned that the proportion of China's users
shopping on mobile reached 96% while online payment in stores
reached 94%. It showed the complementarity of online and offline
interactions in consumer buying behaviour and the trend of
integrating physical and online stores. To adapt to the development of
consumption market, the Group continued to optimise its retail
network. During the year, the number of retail outlets of the Group
decreased by 88 to 1,837 as at the end of December 2018, spanning
across more than 300 cities in China. The Group also sold products on
different online platforms in order to further expand its customer base.

During the year under review, the Group's turnover was
HK$2,451,874,000, up 4.80% as compared with the previous year. Gross
profit was approximately HK$1,960,027,000, increased by
approximately 7.37% year-on-year. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$151,165,000. Net profit margin was 6.17%.

To thank our shareholders for their long-term support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK7 cents per share.

Looking ahead to 2019, the Sino-US trade dispute will continue to pose
uncertainties to global economy. The volatile external environment will
affect the consumption sentiment of the market, thereby the outlook
for underwear retail industry will remain challenging. Nevertheless, the
rise of online shopping platforms and the continued development of
urbanisation will inject growth momentum into the retail industry.
Under the environment with both challenges and opportunities, retail
companies should stay on top of the market changes and respond
flexibly according to the situations. The Group will adhere to the
prudent and forward-looking approach and continue to take strides
towards the goal of long-term and healthy development.

In 2019, the Group will stay committed to implementing the multi-
brand strategy to consolidate and enhance its presence in the mid-to-
high-end market. Meanwhile, the Group will also step up its efforts in
developing low-to-mid-end consumption markets, in order to further
increase its market share. In terms of optimising sales network, the
Group will prudently select locations for opening retail outlets by
focusing on department stores and shopping malls. Also, the Group
will continue to close the stores with low efficiency, with enhancement
of operational efficiency being the top priority.
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The second phase of the automated supply chain logistics facility in
the intelligent warehouse at the Group’s production base in Jinan,
Shandong Province, commenced trial runs in the fourth quarter of
2018 and is scheduled to be put into service in 2019. The Jinan
production base is currently undergoing construction of an intelligent
material warehouse. It is expected to further enhance the supply chain
efficiency, improve productivity and operational performance in the
future, thereby strengthening the overall competitiveness of the Group
in long-term. In respect of research and development, the Group will
align its strategy with the market development and continue to
optimise the product portfolio by delivering more quality designs that
are both beautiful and comfortable, providing more appealing
products to online and offline customers.

I'would like to take this opportunity to thank every of our employees
for their loyalty and contributions to the Group. We made progress and
grew together over the past year. | would also like to express my
gratitude to our shareholders for their relentless support. To thank our
shareholders for their trust, Embry will make our best efforts to create
greater values for our shareholders, customers and employees,
together stepping towards a brighter future.

Cheng Man Tai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2019
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Online and offline retail outlets
complementing each other

to maximise the
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Business and Operations Review

In 2018, the global economic growth momentum softened, and the
growth of major economies was close to the peak. Against the
backdrop of global liquidity tightening and rising trade protectionism,
China’s gross domestic product grew by 6.6% in 2018. Despite the
achievement of the annual growth target of 6.5%, it was the lowest
economic growth rate in China in 28 years. On a quarterly basis, the
growth rate slowed down from 6.8% in the first quarter to 6.4% in the
fourth quarter.

Although China’s overall retail market continued to grow, consumers
have become more conservative towards the consumption of
secondary necessities under the shadow of uncertain domestic and
foreign economic prospects, hindering the overall growth of the
underwear industry in China. In 2018, rural retail sales of consumer
goods increased by 10.1% year-on-year, 1.3 percentage points higher
than the growth of urban retail sales of consumer goods, indicating the
stronger consumption growth momentum of the third- and lower-tier
cities. In view of the rapid rise of spending power in the third- and
fourth-tier markets, the Group has increased the investment in E-BRA
and IADORE which catered for the third- and lower-tier cities in the
past year to capture opportunities arising from consumption upgrade
in the third- and lower-tier cities. In the face of changes in consumer
buying patterns and market segmentation, the Group also aligned
channel and product development to meet the changing needs of
consumers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Current Year”), the Group's
revenue increased by 4.80% over that of the year ended 31 December
2017 (the “Prior Year”) to HK$2,451,874,000. Gross profit margin
remained stable at 79.94%. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HKS$151,165,000, net profit margin was 6.17%. Earnings
per share was HK35.79 cents (2017: HK118.21 cents; Excluding the gain
on the Relocation Arrangement and related tax expenses, earnings per
share was HK37.66 cents).

The Board of Directors of the Company resolved to declare a final
dividend of HK7 cents per share (2017: HK8 cents) for the Current Year
which, together with the interim dividend of HK3.5 cents per share
(2017: HK2.5 cents) distributed, will bring a total dividend for the
Current Year to HK10.5 cents per share.

Brand management

In 2018, the Group continued the effective multi-brand strategy to
operate seven differently positioned brands to cope with the market's
polarised consumption trends. The Group continued to consolidate its
core brands, EMBRY FORM and FANDECIE, which contributed to the
majority of sales of the Group. These two brands also strengthen the
mid- to high-end brand image with their long history and well-
established market position. In order to grasp the opportunities arising
from rapid consumption growth in the third- and lower-tier cities, the
Group has increased its investment in these markets and focused on
cultivating E-BRA and IADORE as growth drivers of the Group. In
recent years, the Group has also opened multi-brand composite stores
in several cities to operate the Group's brands so as to capture the
needs of diverse groups of customers and provide them with a one-
stop shopping experience, thereby driving foot traffic to stores.

During the Current Year, the Group continued to increase the exposure
of its products in Mainland China and overseas countries by
participating in exhibition activities in various regions and online
marketing activities such as live webcasts. In July 2018, the Group
participated in the International Apparel, Apparel Fabrics and Home
Textiles Expo (Autumn) in New York, the United States. It featured the
traditional Chinese cultural elements of the "12 Zodiacs” and
showcased its brand features on the international stage. It was widely
reported by the media including China News Service. In September
2018, the Group joined the exhibition team organised by the Shenzhen
Trade Promotion Commission and held the Shenzhen Products Show
in London, United Kingdom. All seven brands of the Group were
exhibited during London Fashion Week. In China, the Group continued
to participate in the industry exposition, China International Knitting
Trade Fair (Autumn/Winter), with the “12 Zodiacs" series appeared in
the grand finale of the Shenzhen underwear brand joint show,
attracting the audience’s attention.
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During the Current Year, the Group adopted a holistic approach to
online promotion and marketing strategy involving various forms of
promotion such as active search for information, follow the key opinion
leaders, and imitation of fashion styles of celebrities, and cooperated
with mainstream information platforms, celebrities and Internet
celebrities. The Group also put placement advertisements in web
drama series, and flexibly leveraged on the diversified and widespread
nature of the Internet to reach out to the broad customer base. In
particular, the Group participated in the brand question and answer
campaign of the domestic mainstream information platform, in order
to enrich brand information on the platform and to enhance
consumers' knowledge and understanding of the brand. In addition,
the Group also teamed up with film works for joint promotion,
combining film elements with its FANDECIE products for simultaneous
online and offline promotions.
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Sales network

The Group continued to implement its network optimisation strategy
during the Current Year. The Group appropriately adjusted the
distribution of its retail outlets by closing or relocating stores with
lower efficiency so as to enhance the overall efficiency of its sales
network. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 1,837 retail outlets in
total, including 1,557 concessionary counters and 280 stores. During
the Current Year, there was a net decrease of 88 retail outlets of the
Group. Meanwhile, the Group’s products were also available for sale
through different online platforms so as to cater to the changes in
consumers’ shopping habits.

i AT

Design, research and development

Solid self-development capabilities have always been one of the
Group's competitive edges in the market. Adhering to the pursuit of
product quality, the Group continued to invest resources in product
research and development, and strived to optimise and improve the
appearance, functionality and production technology of the products,
and to provide superior-quality products to the market.

During the Current Year, the Group launched a variety of well-received
new collections, including: EMBRY FORM's “Pleasant Moment Series”
([ B & %& & % 3 1) and "Temptation Series” ([ & 2% % 51| 1);
FANDECIE's "Free Cut Seamless Series” ([ B& /L2 IR Z 51| |) and “Star
Dreams Series” ([ 2 2 & #& & 51| ]); COMFIT's “Slim and Stunning
Series” ([ 3 EE £ 5| |) and “Comfortable Fashion Series” ([ 4T =%
i# Z 5| ]); E-BRA's “Delightful | Days Series” ([EHRBEHFEZ]) and
“Shining Fashion Series” ([ & 5% @ i & 51| 1) ; IADORE's "Romantic
Shades Series” ([ JR /285 %51 |) and “Pure Time Series” ([ /& EBRF ¢
Z 3| ]); LIZA CHENG's "Flower Kiss Series” ([ & 2 ¥ % %I |) and
“Butterfly Art Series” ([#%% Z 51| ]); IVU's “Supreme Mark Series” ([ &
eI
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In 2018, the Group obtained 13 new patents, including 8 utility model
patents and 5 appearance design patents. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group had 11 invention patents, 43 utility model patents and 8
appearance design patents.

Production capacity

Over the years, most of the products were manufactured by the Group
in its production bases. The Group quickly responded to market
demand and changes in consumer preferences with flexible
deployment of manpower and machine capacity, to improve
production and delivery efficiency.

The Group's first phase of intelligent warehouse at the production base
in Jinan, Shandong province completed its trial run in 2017 and
commenced operation in the first half of 2018. The second phase of
the equipment of intelligent warehouse is conducting trial run.
Moreover, in order to optimise productivity and improve supply chain
efficiency, the production base in Jinan is under construction of
intelligent material warehouse.

In addition, the second phase of plant premises and ancillary facilities
at the Group's production base in Changzhou, Jiangsu province is
scheduled for completion in 2019.
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Human resources

Implementation of the minimum wage policy and tight labour supply
in China have resulted in consistent wage inflation. The Group
endeavoured to increase staff loyalty through measures such as
organising training courses and improving employee benefits to
enhance solidarity, thereby improving its overall operational efficiency.
The number of employees of the Group increased to approximately
8,052 (31 December 2017: approximately 7,862). Total staff costs
(including wages and basic salaries, commissions, bonuses,
contributions to the retirement benefits scheme and excluding
directors’ and chief executive’s remunerations) for the Current Year was
HK$759,967,000 (2017: HKS$712,289,000).

Financial Review

Revenue

By sales channel and region

Revenue for the Current Year was HK$2,451,874,000, representing a
4.80% increase over the Prior Year, mainly attributable to the Group’s
omni-channel coverage and its effective multi-brand strategy.

During the Current Year, revenue from the retail sales was
HK$2,058,399,000, accounting for 83.95% of the Group's total revenue
and representing an increase of 0.90% over the Prior Year. Revenue
from the Internet and wholesale business increased by 32.68% from
HK$292,917,000 to HKS$388,632,000, accounting for 15.85% of the total
revenue.

The Mainland China market is the main source of income for the Group.
During the Current Year, revenue from the Mainland China market was
HK$2,375,600,000, accounting for 96.89% of the total revenue of the
Group.

By brand and product line

The Group currently operates seven brands, namely EMBRY FORM,
FANDECIE, COMFIT, E-BRA, IADORE, IVU and LIZA CHENG, serving
customers with different needs and varying degrees of purchasing
power.
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EMBRY FORM, the signature brand, is the main source of income for
the Group and its contribution to the total revenue amounted to
45.42%. EMBRY FORM's revenue amounted to HK$1,113,604,000,
which increased by 2.44% of the total revenue for the Current Year.
FANDECIE's revenue amounted to HK$615,805,000, remaining stable
as last year, accounting for 25.12% of the total revenue for the Current
Year. COMFIT's revenue increased by 8.96% from the Prior Year to
HK$232,251,000, accounting for 9.47% of the total revenue for the
Current Year. E-BRA's revenue increased by 5.23% from the Prior Year
to HK$246,213,000, accounting for 10.04% of the total revenue for the
Current Year. LIZA CHENG's revenue for the Current Year increased by
10.72% to HK$52,121,000. IADORE's revenue increased by 23.17% from
the Prior Year to HK$71,810,000, accounting for 2.93% of the total
revenue for the Current Year. IVU's revenue increased by 42.91% from
the Prior Year to HK$115,227,000, accounting for 4.70% of the total
revenue for the Current Year. Among the brands, the growth of IVU
and IADORE's revenue was more prominent, mainly benefited from
the Group's increased investment in the two brands during the Current
Year to capture faster spending growth in the third- and lower-tier
cities. The brands' respective proportion in revenue mainly reflected
the Group's alignment of its business focus to market development.

Lingerie has always been the Group’s core product. During the Current
Year, sales of lingerie increased by 4.52% over the Prior Year to
HKS$2,139,176,000, representing 87.24% of the revenue of the Group.
Sales of sleepwear increased by 17.17% to HK$ 165,146,000, accounting
for 6.74% of the total revenue of the Group, while sales of swimwear
increased by 2.44% to HKS$123,220,000, accounting for 5.03% of the
total revenue of the Group.

Gross Profit

During the Current Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of
approximately HK$1,960,027,000, representing an increase of 7.37%
over the Prior Year. Gross profit margin increased by 1.91 percentage
points over the Prior Year to 79.94%.

EEmBRLAFEAEEREEWAR - (&
AU A (G E4542% c REF ML EE A
1,113,604,0008 7T + ¥ £ F[E 1 K 244% o F U
FFE R 561580500080 0 HEFFF - (h
INEF U 25.12% © COMFIT L E5BR FF[E
FFH8.96% = 232,251,100 7T + (R AFELULA
947% > =FNE-BRAE (8 EFE £ F523%
Z2246,213,0008 7 + 1 A F E AU A 10.04% o
LIZA CHENG i /N F € & ¥ BE 12 IN1072% &
521210008 Lo TR EHXBR LEFE EF
23.17% £ 71,810,000/ 7T 14 & F & 8 K A
293% IVUE X8 EFE £ A4029%=E
115,227,00078 7T + (G ARNFE LKA 4.70% ° % &
mEP  IWREREEFRERRARL - £
B2 a PR BN K ¥ S 1/ E o b A 1%
A HRZGUTHTRRENEEER - &
mEREGL  FERMASEREMSER
M S M EREMNER -

ZHAK —HERAEENZOERG - RAF
B - NIKIHE A2,139,176000/8 7T B EFE |

Fr452% - (HAREE U 87.24% - EEXIHE T+
17.17% » % % %8 /316514600076 7T » (h AN £

W Z=674%° kK K $H B B £ F244%=
123,220,000/ 70 + {h A& B UL % 5.03% ©

EF

RAFE  NEEESFEF41,960,027,000 7%
TC o W EEE EFF737% o BEEEF R EFR
BiFH1.91 B9 B0 & 79.94% ©

19



20

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED % #j %7 # Bt i R 24 5] / ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &R

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

L S AT
Other income and gains

Other income decreased by 18.90% to HK$72,513,000 for the Current
Year, mainly due to the foreign exchange loss of approximately
HK$14,096,000 resulted from the depreciation of Renminbi. Besides, fair
value of investment properties has increased by HK$9,000,000.

Operating expenses

During the Current Year, selling and distribution expenses increased by
6.61% to HK$1,514,093,000 (2017: HKS1,420,233,000), accounting for
61.75% (2017: 60.71%) of the Group's revenue. The increase in the
proportion of selling and distribution expenses to overall sales was
mainly due to the increase in online advertising expenses on the
Group's brands and the increase in counter decoration expenses
according to the Group's market segmentation strategy.

Administrative expenses increased by 5.97% over the Prior Year to
HK$266,038,000, accounting for 10.85% (2017: 10.73%) of the Group's
revenue.

Net profit

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$151,165,000 for
the Current Year, representing a decrease of 69.48% over the Prior Year.
Net profit margin amounted to 6.17%. Excluding the gain on the
Relocation Arrangement and the related tax expenses in the Prior Year,
net profit decreased by 4.21% from HK$157,814,000 to HK$151,165,000.
Net profit margin decreased from 6.75% to 6.17%. The decrease in net
profit was mainly due to the increase in advertising and counter
decoration expenses.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group finances its operations mainly with internally generated
cash flows. Financial position of the Group remained sound and
healthy during the Current Year. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$158,414,000
(31 December 2017: HK$234,711,000). As at 31 December 2018, the
Group’'s interest-bearing bank borrowings amounted to
HK$427,059,000 (31 December 2017: HK$326,056,000). As at 31
December 2018, the equity interest attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to HK$2,331,719,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$2,367,110,000). Accordingly, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 18.32% (31 December 2017: 13.77%).
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Capital expenditure

During the Current Year, the capital expenditure of the Group
amounted to HK$228,473,000 (2017: HK$100,234,000), which was
mainly used for the Group’s second phase of intelligent warehouse,
intelligent material warehouse in Shandong and the second phase of
the plant premises and ancillary facilities at production base in
Changzhou. As at 31 December 2018, the capital commitments of the
Group amounted to HK$201,516,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$262,425,000), which were contracted but not provided for in the
financial statements.

Charge on the Group’s assets
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not pledge any assets.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2018, the total issued share capital of the Company
was HKS$4,224,000 (31 December 2017: HKS$4,224,000), comprising
422,417,000 (31 December 2017: 422,417,000) ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

Significant investment held, material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies
During the Current Year, the Group was neither involved in any
significant investment, nor any material acquisitions or disposals of any
subsidiaries or associated companies.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group carries out its transactions mainly in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
protect against the volatility associated with foreign currency
transactions and other financial assets and liabilities created in the
ordinary course of the business.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, bank guarantees given in lieu of the Group’s
property rental deposits and utility deposits amounted to HK$679,000
(31 December 2017: HK$243,000). Save as disclosed above, the Group
had no other significant contingent liabilities, nor any litigation or
arbitration of material importance.
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Prospect

Looking ahead to 2019, the global economy is full of uncertainties. In
view of uncertainties including Sino-US trade frictions and Brexit, the
United Nations and the International Monetary Fund have lowered
their global economic growth targets for the next two years. The
increase in uncertainties in the macro environment will affect the
investment market sentiment and adversely affect overall consumer
confidence. However, as the contribution ratio of consumption to
China’s economic growth continues to increase, domestic
consumption has gradually become the main driving force for
economic growth. Together with consumption upgrades propelled by
the growth of China's per capita disposable income, the domestic retail
market will develop healthily in the long term.

In recent years, the growth of sales in the lingerie market in China has
stayed above 10%. According to the Analysis Report of Research and
Development Trend in the Chinese Underwear Market released by
China Industry Research Network, it is expected that the growth will
remain at around 10% in the next three years, indicating the
considerable market growth potential. However, in the face of a
conservative market sentiment in the short term, the Group will adopt
a vigilant approach, closely monitor the market trends, and re-examine
and adjust its execution strategies in a timely manner.
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In response to the increasingly personalised and diversified needs of
the market, the Group will continue to leverage its existing economies
of scale and multi-brand strategy. With the use of the customer
relationship management system, we will launch targeted products
and adjust sales networks according to the consumption patterns of
consumers in local markets to improve sales efficiency. In terms of sales
networks, the Group will allocate brands and product portfolios
according to the market segment characteristics of the retail outlets,
operate integrated stores in suitable locations to capture a wider
customer base, and strike a balance between the proportion of
concessionary counters and stores. To capitalise on the rapid growth of
the e-commerce market, the Group will continue to explore
opportunities in the e-commerce channels, develop more e-commerce
exclusive products, improve delivery efficiency with constantly
upgraded logistics system, make good use of new media to promote
and reach more potential customers. With the online and offline retail
outlets complementing each other to maximise the omni-channel
sales, the Group's competitiveness will be comprehensively enhanced.

Despite the rapid changes in the macro environment, with the Group's
extensive experience in the industry and its solid business foundation,
a nationwide sales network covering online and offline sales channels,
commitment to quality, as well as flexible and effective multi-brand
strategy, the Group will continue to respond promptly and
appropriately to the changing market, so as to provide shareholders
with stable and sustainable returns.
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According to the national retail consumption survey results released by China General Chamber of Commerce and the
China National Commercial Information Centre in 2018, EMBRY FORM lingerie ranked top three in 2017 in terms of
composite market share in similar products in the industry, and ranked first in 2017 in terms of composite market
share with respect to group sales in similar products in the industry

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was granted the award of Best Dedication by the Shenzhen Underwear Association
Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded certificates of National Exemplary Enterprise of Integrity in Product and
Service Quality by the China Association for Quality Inspection

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was named by the National Technical Committee on Garment Standardization in China as
an Advanced Unit of Standardization Work in 2018

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. received an award for Top 100 Enterprises of Shenzhen Brands at the first award
ceremony of Top 100 Shenzhen Brands from the Shenzhen Quality City Promotion Association

Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. was granted the Integrated Contribution Award (2017) by the People’s
Government of Xuejia Town

Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was named by the Zhanggiu District Committee of Jinan City and People’s
Government of Zhanggiu District, Jinan City as Top Ten Enterprises of Technical Reform and Tax Contributions (2017)
Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was accredited by China National Textile and Apparel Council as an Exemplary
Pilot Unit for Smart Manufacturing in Textile Industry

Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was named by the Management Committee of Mingshui Economic and
Technological Development Zone as an Advanced Unit of Industrial Economy Operation (2017)
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Embry (Shanghai) Company Limited was accredited as the Top 100 Garment Enterprises in China (2017) by the
China National Garment Association

EMBRY FORM received awards for Top 50 Branded Chains of Quality, Influence and Growth Potential (2018) from
the Organising Committee of the Conference on the Development of Branded Chains in China

EMBRY FORM and E-BRA were granted the Annual Brand Equity Award of China’s Underwear Industry (2017-2018)
at the 2018 China (Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

FANDECIE and COMFIT were granted the Annual Innovation Award of China’s Underwear Industry (2017-2018) at
the 2018 China (Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

IADORE was granted the Annual Novel Brand Award of China’s Underwear Industry (2017-2018) at the 2018 China
(Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

EMBRY FORM received the Hong Kong Top Brand (2007-2018) award from the Hong Kong Brand Development Council
and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

EMBRY FORM was awarded the Quality Tourism Services Scheme Certification Mark by the Hong Kong
Tourism Board

Embry (H.K.) Limited was accredited by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority as a Good MPF Employer
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Man Tai, aged 89, is the Chairman and founder of the
Group, and an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Cheng had been
a consultant of the Company from March 2014 to August 2018 prior to
his re-appointment as an Executive Director of the Company in August
2018. Mr. Cheng is in charge of the Group's corporate strategy. He has
over 43 years of experience in the lingerie industry. Mr. Cheng
graduated from Beijing Agricultural Engineering University (now
known as China Agricultural University) with a Bachelor's degree. He is
an Honorary Professor of China Agricultural University. Mr. Cheng
obtained the World Outstanding Chinese Award and Honorary
Doctorate of Business Management from Armstrong University in July
2006. He was awarded Honorary Fellowship and admitted as Honorary
Professor by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration
and Lincoln University respectively in September 2009. He was also
awarded Senior Fellowship by the Asian College of Knowledge
Management in January 2013. Mr. Cheng is also a shareholder and
director of Harmonious World Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), the spouse of Madam Ngok Ming Chu (an Executive
Director of the Company) and the father of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza (an
Executive Director of the Company) and Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen (an
Executive Director of the Company).

Madam Ngok Ming Chu, aged 82, is an Executive Director and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Ngok served as
Chairman of the Group from March 2014 to August 2018. Madam Ngok
is in charge of the Group's business planning. She joined the Group in
1980 and has over 38 years of experience in the lingerie industry.
Madam Ngok graduated from and is currently an Honorary Professor of
Beijing Agricultural Engineering University (now known as China
Agricultural University). She is also a shareholder and director of
Harmonious World Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
the spouse of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (the Chairman of the Group), the
mother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza (an Executive Director of the
Company) and the step-mother of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen (an
Executive Director of the Company).
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Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, aged 56, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, an Executive Director and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. She is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the businesses of the
Group. Ms. Cheng joined the Group in 1993 and has over 26 years of
experience in the lingerie industry. She obtained a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration from the University of Southern California and
a Master of Business Administration (Executive) degree from the City
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Cheng was awarded the prize for Young
Industrialist in Hong Kong in 1999 and was appointed as Vice Chairman
of Shanghai Garment Trade Association in 2008. She obtained the
World Outstanding Chinese Award and Honorary Doctorate of Business
Administration from International American University in March 2009,
and was awarded Fellowship and admitted as Visiting Professor by
Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration and Lincoln
University respectively in September 2009. Furthermore, Ms. Cheng
was elected as the first President of Shenzhen Underwear Association
in August 2012. She is currently a member of the Yangpu Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Shanghai,
a member of the China National Textile and Apparel Council, a Vice
Chairman of China Knitting Industrial Association, a specially invited
Vice President of the China Association for Quality Inspection and a
Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited.
Ms. Cheng is also a director of Harmonious World Limited (a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the daughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (the
Chairman of the Group) and Madam Ngok Ming Chu (an Executive
Director of the Company), and the younger sister of Mr. Cheng Chuen
Chuen (an Executive Director of the Company).
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Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, aged 69, is an Executive Director of the
Company and currently the Assistant General Manager (Research and
Development) of Embry (China) Garments Ltd. He first joined the
Group in May 2005 and has rejoined the Group since April 2017. He is
also a director of Duosiwei Metal and Plastic Products (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. and Changzhou Duosiwei Furniture Decoration Construction Co.,
Ltd. He is in charge of the research and development centre of the
Group and is responsible for innovations of technologies, processes
and equipment for the production of products. Mr. Cheng has over 22
years of experience in technological research and development in the
manufacturing of display furniture, display dummies and also garment
processing. Mr. Cheng is the son of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (the Chairman
of the Group), the step-son of Madam Ngok Ming Chu (an Executive
Director of the Company) and an elder brother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho
Liza (an Executive Director of the Company).

Ms. Lu Qun, aged 65, is an Executive Director of the Company and
currently the Assistant General Manager (Strategic Management) of
Embry (China) Garments Ltd. and the General Manager of Embry
(Shandong) Garments Limited. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lu is responsible for the functions of
strategic management and project management in Mainland China.
She joined the Group in April 2003 and has over 39 years of experience
in management and administration. Ms. Lu obtained a Master's degree
in Business Administration from Beihang University (previously known
as Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics), the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC"), in 2001. She has also obtained an
undergraduate diploma in international trade from the University of
International Business and Economics, the PRC, in 1992. Ms. Lu
completed a senior managers’ human resources management training
course held by Tsinghua University, the PRC, in 2006. She has obtained
the International Project Management Professional Certification since
2002.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Siu Ki, alias, Kevin Lau, aged 60, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Lau is currently running his own management
consultancy firm, Hin Yan Consultants Limited. Mr. Lau has previously
worked at an international accounting firm for over 15 years. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in 1981. Mr. Lau is a fellow member of
both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”") and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a
member of the worldwide Council of ACCA from May 2002 to
September 2011. Mr. Lau is currently the company secretary of Yeebo
(International Holdings) Limited, Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings
Limited and Expert Systems Holdings Limited, and an independent
non-executive director of Binhai Investment Company Limited, Comba
Telecom Systems Holdings Limited, FIH Mobile Limited, Samson
Holding Ltd. and TCL Electronics Holdings Limited, the shares of which
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He had been an independent non-executive director of
China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation on 6 December
2018. He had also been an independent non-executive director of TCL
Communication Technology Holdings Limited, the shares of which
were delisted from the Stock Exchange from 30 September 2016. Mr.
Lau also served as an independent supervisor of the sixth session of
Beijing Capital International Airport Company Limited from June 2014
to June 2017. Mr. Lau joined the Company in November 2006.

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, aged 53, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Lee is a consultant of Howse Williams. He received his LL.B
(Honours) degree and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the
University of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively. He was then
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and in England and Wales
in 1997. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of
NetDragon Websoft Holdings Limited, Newton Resources Ltd, Tenfu
(Cayman) Holdings Company Limited, China BlueChemical Ltd.,
Landsea Green Group Co,, Ltd., Red Star Macalline Group Corporation
Ltd., China Goldjoy Group Limited, FSE Services Group Limited and Ten
Pao Group Holdings Limited, the shares of these companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange. He had been an independent non-executive
director of Futong Technology Development Holdings Limited and
Asia Cassava Resources Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation on 18 November 2017 and
13 May 2018 respectively. Mr. Lee joined the Company in November
2006.
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Prof. Lee T. S, alias, Lee Tien-sheng, aged 70, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Prof. Lee is currently the Professor
Emeritus of the Department of Supply Chain and Information
Management of Hang Seng Management College. He was the Dean of
the Faculty of Business Administration of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 2002 to 2008, Vice-President (Academic & Research)
of Hang Seng Management College from 2009 to 2014, the Head and
Professor of the Department of Supply Chain and Information
Management of Hang Seng Management College from 2009 to 2015
and a Chair Professor of Feng Chia University, Taiwan from December
2015 to January 2019. Prof. Lee obtained his PhD in Business
Administration and Master's degree in Business Administration from
the University of Missouri-Columbia, the United States in 1982 and
1978 respectively. He also holds a Master's degree in Management
Science and a Bachelor’s degree in Electronic Engineering from the
National Chiao Tung University of Taiwan. Prof. Lee's research and
teaching interests include supply chain management, quality
management and business process reengineering. He has published
his research in many academic journals. Prof. Lee had been an
independent non-executive director of GET Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation
on 28 December 2018. Prof. Lee joined the Company in November
2006.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Fung Kam Lai Katie, aged 52, is the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer. Ms. Fung is responsible for the supervision and management of
the Group's overall financial matters and investor relations. She joined
the Group in March 2007 as the Internal Audit Director and was
appointed to the present position in July 2010. Ms. Fung obtained a
Master's degree in Business Administration (Executive) from the City
University of Hong Kong. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Fung has over 29 years of experience in
auditing, financial accounting, corporate investment and financing, as
well as management.
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The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
the maintenance of good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The Company believes that good corporate governance
provides a framework that is essential for effective management, a
healthy corporate culture, sustainable business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all
code provisions under the CG Code so far as they are applicable and a
majority of the recommended best practices under the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Review Period”).
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Governance Structure
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Directors

Board Composition

The Directors place great emphasis on the fiduciary nature of the
Board's responsibilities and strive to be accountable to the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

A board diversity policy has been formulated by the Board setting out
the approach to maintaining a Board with a diversity of directors. The
Company recognises the benefits of diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting its sustainable development. All Board
appointments will continue to be based on meritocracy with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Cheng Man Tai (Chairman), Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive
Officer), Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu
Qun; and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau
Siu Ki, Mr. Lee Kwan Hung and Prof. Lee T. S. The number of
Independent Non-Executive Directors represents more than one-third
of the Board. The biographical details of and relationships among the
members of the Board are disclosed under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28 to 32 of this annual
report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as all the Executive Directors possess extensive
experience in management and the research and development,
design, production and marketing of lingerie products while the three
Independent Non-Executive Directors possess professional knowledge
and broad experience in finance, law and management respectively.
The Directors are of the opinion that the present structure of the Board
can ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board and provide
a system of checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
Article 108(A) of the articles of association of the Company provides
that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years at
the Company’s annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-
election. Under Article 105, the office of a Director of the Company is
liable to be vacated in certain circumstances and the Company may
remove any Director of the Company by an ordinary resolution at a
general meeting as prescribed in Article 114,

The appointment of new Directors and nomination of Directors for re-
election at annual general meetings are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. New Directors
appointed by the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders at
the next following annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company. In considering the appointment of new
Directors, the Nomination Committee will assess the candidate
according to the criteria set out in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. In the case of a candidate for an Independent Non-Executive
Director, he/she should also meet the independence criteria set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Executive Directors

The Executive Directors, Mr. Cheng Man Tai, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza,
Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun,
have each entered into a service agreement with the Company for a
fixed term of two years. Each Executive Director is entitled to a
discretionary management bonus provided that the aggregate amount
of the bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial
year of the Company shall not exceed 8% of the audited consolidated
net profit of the Group (after taxation and non-controlling interests and
payment of such bonuses) for that financial year of the Company. An
Executive Director shall not vote on any resolution of the Directors
regarding the amount of the management bonus payable to him/her.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors was appointed for a
term of two years with a formal letter of appointment setting out the
key terms and conditions of his appointment.

Save for the directors’ fees, none of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors is expected to receive any other remuneration for holding his
office as an Independent Non-Executive Director.
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The Company annually assesses the independence of each
Independent Non-Executive Director during his term of appointment.
In January 2019, the Company received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors a written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmations,
the Company considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
are independent.

Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board Committee
Meetings

The Board considers that all meetings should be legally and properly
convened. The Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that
Board meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the articles of association
of the Company, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for drawing
up and approving the agenda for each meeting after consultation with
all the Directors and the Company Secretary. Prior notice of each
regular Board meeting is given to all the Directors at least 14 days in
advance and the Directors are invited to include matters for discussion
in the agenda. Agenda and accompanying Board papers are sent to all
the Directors at least 3 days (or such other period as agreed) prior to
meetings.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition, special
Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve
the active participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of all the Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to provide
sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to attend. For
special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board, including all concerns raised by the Directors
and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of all Board meetings and
Board committee meetings are available for inspection by any Director,
auditor or any relevant eligible parties who can have access to such
minutes.
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Directors’ Attendance Records

The record of attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings,
Board committee meetings and annual general meeting held during
2018 is set out in the following table:

ESNHERE

TREVSEEN _T-\FRARTHNESFS
% EFZBCeRNMERBFRAENLE
FCEE

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

SRHERY/BTRE
Annual

Audit Nomination  Remuneration General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Bz Ex® ENZEE® ReZEg®  FMZEEE RREFAS
Executive Directors HITES
Cheng Man Tai* (Chairman) BeR* (1) 1/ N/ATER N/ATER N/ARSE N/ATER
Cheng Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive Officer) BB (77842 %) 8/8 N/AR T Wy, 22 11
Ngok Ming Chu ER% 8/8 NARER N/ATER N/AT B 1
Cheng Chuen Chuen gEe 8/8 N/ATER N/ATER NATER 1/1
LuQun i 8/8 NATER N/AE R N/ATER 1/1
Independent Non-Executive BIkGTES

Directors

Lau Siu ki FRE 8/8 33 22 Y] 1
Lee Kwan Hung &350 8/8 33 22 212 1/1
LeeT.S. FRE 8/8 33 22 2 1
Average Attendance Rate TR 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
* Mr. Cheng Man Tai was appointed as an Executive Director of the — * BHEREER - ZE—N\FENA-_+=ZHEZT

Company on 23 August 2018. Subsequent to his appointment, one
Board meeting was held during the year.

In addition, the Chairman met once with the Independent Non-
Executive Directors without the presence of other Directors during the
Review Period.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy with an aim to
indemnify its Directors and senior executives from any losses, claims,
damages, liabilities and expenses arising from, including but not
limited to, any proceedings brought against them during the
performance of their duties pursuant to their respective service
agreements entered into with the Company.
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Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) (with certain modifications
but on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code (“Securities Dealing Code") to regulate the securities dealings by
all the Directors and relevant employees of the Group.

The Company made specific enquiry of all the Directors and members
of the senior management who confirmed that they complied with the
Securities Dealing Code during the Review Period.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to the CG Code, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

During the Review Period, all Directors received regular briefings and
updates on the Group's business, operations, internal controls and
corporate governance matters. Relevant reading materials were
provided to the Directors. They also attended courses and seminars
organised by external professional bodies on topics relevant to the
duties and responsibilities of a director during the Review Period. All
Directors have provided the Company with their respective training
records pursuant to the CG Code.

Procedure for Seeking Independent Professional
Advice by Directors

There is a written procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek and be provided with independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expense in order to assist them to discharge their duties to the
Company.
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Functions of the Board

Distinctive Roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer

To avoid concentration of power in any one individual, a clear division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer is crucial to the effective running of the Board and the day-to-
day management of the Group's businesses. The positions of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are held by
two different Executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Man Tai and Ms.
Cheng Pik Ho Liza respectively. Their roles and duties are segregated,
with a clear division of responsibilities. Mr. Cheng Man Tai, the
Chairman, is to provide leadership for the Board and ensure that the
Board works effectively while Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, the Chief Executive
Officer, is answerable to the Board for the operations of the Group. Mr.
Cheng is the father of Ms. Cheng.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management
While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging its duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to:

the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each committee’s constitution,
powers and duties are clearly defined by its terms of reference,
and the committees are accountable to the Board. Ad hoc Board
committees may also be established as required from time to
time by the Board;

the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-day
management of the businesses of the Group, is accountable to
the Board; and

the senior management team of the Group, being delegated
with the responsibilities to deal with daily operational functions,
is answerable to the Executive Directors.

The Board believes that effective delegation of authority can ensure
that the Board is provided with sufficient and timely information of the
Group's businesses which is, in particular, relevant to the Group’s
performance, financial position and operating results, in order that the
Board is able to make an informed assessment of matters put before
the Board for approval. During the Review Period, each Executive
Director had frequent meetings with operational managers in order to
maintain an effective feedback system and enable the Company to
react to changes or problems quickly and effectively.
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The functions reserved to the Board are formalized in writing and
include:

any matters relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategy and direction;

any matters relating to financial controls, compliance and risk
management;

any changes in corporate structure such as the changes relating
to the Company's capital structure, including share buy-back or
issue of new securities;

major appointments such as appointments to the Board, after
taking into account the recommendations of the Nomination
Committee; the appointment of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer; recommendations to the shareholders on the
appointment or removal of external auditor after taking into
consideration the recommendations of the Audit Committee;
and the appointment or removal of the Chief Financial Officer
and the Company Secretary;

any matters determined by the Board to be material, including
dividend policy, significant changes in accounting policies,
material contracts, major financing arrangements and major
investments; and

the corporate governance functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

With respect to the corporate governance functions, the Board has
reviewed and monitored the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and
the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of authority
to ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view of the Company’s
prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting systems are in
place.
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Board Committees

A total of three Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, have been
formed, each of which is delegated with specific roles and
responsibilities by the Board. All the Board committees follow the same
principles and procedures as those of the Board. The Board receives the
minutes of each committee meeting on a regular basis, including their
decisions and recommendations.

Audit Committee
At present, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Lau Siu Ki (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung
Prof. Lee T.S.

Members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board among
the Independent Non-Executive Directors and the committee consists
of not less than three members. The Board considers that each Audit
Committee member has broad commercial experience and together
form a suitable mix of expertise in the legal and accounting fields and
that the composition and members of the Audit Committee comply
with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Board,
after consultation with the chairman of the Audit Committee, provides
sufficient resources to the Audit Committee to enable it to discharge
its duties.

The Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in
its terms of reference. To maintain its independence, the Audit
Committee is required to have at least one meeting with the external
auditor without the presence of Executive Directors within a financial
year. The function of the committee is to provide assistance to the
Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities to shareholders, potential
shareholders, the investment community and other stakeholders
relating to:

the integrity of accounts and financial reporting process of the
Company;

the assessment of the external auditor’s qualifications and
independence;

the performance of the Company’s internal audit function and
the performance of the external auditor; and

the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee held three meetings
including one meeting with the external auditor without the presence
of the Executive Directors and the management. The record of
attendance of individual Directors at the committee meetings is set
out on page 38 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Review Period:

(iif)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

review of the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

review of the external auditor’s independence and their report,
with a recommendation to the Board for the re-appointment of
the external auditor by the shareholders of the Company at its
2018 annual general meeting;

review of continuing connected transactions;

review of the interim report and results announcement of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2018, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

review of quarterly financial reports of the Company prepared by
the Finance and Accounts Department;

consideration of audit and non-audit services provided by the
external auditor;

review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries;

review of periodic reports prepared by the Audit Centre;

review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions, and their training programmes
and budget; and

review of the audit fees payable to the external auditor for the
year ended 31 December 2018, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/payable to
Ernst & Young, the external auditor of the Company, for the following
services provided during the Review Period:

Services Rendered

BEET &

EZ B EHMAAR R Z ISR BN % K
SR EBANEBAE AR A TREAR
AN E

Remuneration
Paid/Payable

FriR AR 7% B EAME
HKS
BT
Audit services EIZ RS 2,880,000
Non-audit services FEEAZ RS 768,300
Total: FEE 3,648,800

The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor is
reasonable. There has been no major disagreement between the
auditor and the management of the Company during the Review
Period.

Nomination Committee

At present, the Nomination Committee has four members comprising
one Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely:

Prof. Lee T.S. (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to identify individuals
who are suitably qualified to become Directors, and to assess the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors. After
considering the independence and qualifications of nominees, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board so as to
ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the succession planning of
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
The Board, after consultation with the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Nomination
Committee to enable it to discharge its duties.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2018. The record of
attendance of individual Directors at the committee meeting is set out
on page 38 of this annual report.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Review Period:

)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors;

recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors;

review of the existing structure, size and composition of the
Board;

recommendation to the Board on the appointment of an
Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company;

recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of an
Executive Director of the Company; and

recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following major criteria set out in the Company’s director nomination
policy had been considered by the Nomination Committee:

character and integrity;

qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience relevant to the Company’s business
and strategy, and diversity aspects under the board diversity
policy of the Company;

requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of
the Company; and

the overall ability to exercise good judgement and to provide
valuable insights and diverse perspective to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director and the biographical information of the
candidate, had evaluated such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above to determine whether such candidate was qualified for
directorship and made recommendation to the Board to appoint the
candidate for directorship.

With respect to the re-election of Directors at the annual general
meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the overall
contribution and services to the Company of the retiring Directors and
the level of participation and performance on the Board to determine
whether the retiring Directors would continue to meet the criteria as
set out above and made recommendation to the Board in respect of
the proposed re-election of Directors at the general meeting. The
relevant information of the retiring Directors together with the
recommendation of the Board would then be disclosed in the circular
accompanying the notice of the general meeting and sent to
shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws
and regulations.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Independent Non-
Executive Director who also acts as Nomination Committee member
abstained from assessing his own independence and re-appointment.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Remuneration Committee

At present, the Remuneration Committee has four members
comprising one Executive Director and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza

Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Prof. Lee T.S.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the
Board in establishing a formal and transparent procedure for setting
policy on Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and to
make recommendation to the Board on the packages (which include
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments) of
individual Executive Directors and senior management (i.e. the model
described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code was adopted) as
well as on the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors. The Board,
after consultation with the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
provides sufficient resources to the Remuneration Committee to
enable it to discharge its duties.
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In recommending the remuneration of the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee makes reference to companies of comparable business or
scale, and the nature and volume of work in order to compensate the
Directors reasonably for their time and efforts spent. The Remuneration
Committee regularly reviews and makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2018. The record
of attendance of individual Directors at the committee meetings is set
out on page 38 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the Review Period:

(i) review of the salary proposal for 2018 of Executive Directors and
staff in Mainland China and Hong Kong, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

(i) recommendation to the Board on the payment of bonuses to
the senior management staff in Mainland China;

(i)  recommendation to the Board on the payment of discretionary
bonuses to the Executive Directors and staff in respect of the final
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the interim results of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2018;

(iv) review of the remuneration package of the newly appointed
Executive Director and Chairman of the Company, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(v)  review of the new service agreements between the Company
and Executive Directors of the Company, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval; and

(vi)  review of the letters of re-appointment of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Independent Non-
Executive Director who also acts as Remuneration Committee member
had not involved in reviewing his own director’s fees.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

RIBFEREATRISTANREBIS K SARE
BEKERBE T /\Ft_-_A=1+—HI
FEZHFNRMEFBOT -

Number of
employee

BEAH

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

Details of the remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company. During the Review
Period, the Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue in business. Accordingly, the Board has
prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going concern
basis.

All the Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about the
auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 65 to 71
of this annual report.

The Company announces its interim and annual results as soon as
reasonably practicable after the end of the relevant financial period
and the financial year respectively pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules, disclosing all such information as would enable the
Company’s shareholders to assess the performance, financial position
and prospects of the Company.
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Dividend Policy

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company, subject to the articles of association of
the Company and all applicable laws and regulations. In
recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements
and future growth as well as its shareholder value. The Company has
no fixed dividend pay-out ratio. The Board considers that, in general,
the amount of dividends to be declared will depend on the Group’s
financial results, cash position, capital requirements, business
conditions and strategies, and other factors as may be considered
relevant at such time by the Board.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining appropriate risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. Risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Group has established comprehensive policies and
procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls.

The Group has an internal audit function. The Audit Centre of the
Group conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. It carries out the financial,
operational, project management and information security control
reviews according to the yearly plan reviewed and endorsed by the
Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of work, the Audit
Centre conducts other reviews and work as and when required. The
management, in coordination with the Audit Centre, assessed the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the
risk management progress. Findings and recommendations are
reported regularly to members of the Audit Committee and the Board.

During the Review Period, the management has confirmed to the
Board and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and the Board had
conducted a review of its risk management and internal control
systems of the Group under code provision C.2.1 and considered them
effective and adequate without the occurrence of any significant
failure.
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The Audit Centre of the Group continued to provide independent
assurance to the Board and management on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for
the Group during the Review Period. The Assistant Director of Audit
Centre reports functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively
to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board undertakes to periodically review the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group to ensure their effectiveness and
efficiency.

The Board reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget during the Review Period and considered that the Group had
adequate staff resources with the competence, qualifications and
experience necessary for the effective performance of its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

A whistleblowing policy has been formulated with a view to providing
a mechanism for employees of the Group to raise concerns about the
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. Internal procedures are put in place whereby employees of
the Group can report possible risks and inside information identified in
daily operation to the Board. Furthermore, the Company has developed
its disclosure policy which provides a general guide to the Company's
Directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure
and responding to enquiries.

Company Secretary

Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider, has
been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary. The primary
contact person at the Company, whom Ms. So can contact, is Ms. Katie
Fung, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the Review Period, Ms. So has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update her skills and knowledge.
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Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company has engaged a professional public relations consultancy
company to organise various investor relations programs (including
regular briefing meetings with the media and analysts) aiming at
increasing the transparency of the Company, enhancing communication
with shareholders and investors, increasing their understanding of and
confidence in the Group’s businesses and promoting market
recognition of and support to the Company.

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining on-going
communications with its shareholders and encourages them to attend
shareholders’ meetings to stay informed of the Group's businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and senior
management.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company by Shareholders

In accordance with Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries by shareholders to be put to the Board can be sent in writing
to the Company's Company Secretarial Department at the principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or
dividend warrants, the Company’s registered shareholders can contact
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited. For other enquires or requests, the Company's
investors can contact iPR Ogilvy Limited, the Company's investor
relations consultancy company. Detailed contact information is
available on the Company’s website at www.embrygroup.com.
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Procedures for Making Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to nominate a person to stand
for election as a Director, the following documents must be validly sent
to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, namely (i) his/her notice of intention to propose a
resolution at the general meeting; and (ii) a notice executed by the
nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness to be appointed.
The period for lodgment of the notices of (i) and (ii) above will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such meeting.

To put forward proposals other than the above at a general meeting,
shareholders of the Company should submit a written notice of those
proposals with their detailed contact information to the Company
Secretary at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.
The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at general
meetings varies according to the nature of the proposal.

During the Review Period, the Company has not made any changes to
its articles of association. An up-to-date version of the articles of
association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the
articles of association for further details of the rights of shareholders.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends
The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 72 to 172.

An interim dividend of HK3.5 cents per ordinary share was paid on 4
October 2018. The directors recommend a final dividend of HK7 cents
per ordinary share in respect of the year, to shareholders on the register
of members on 30 May 2019. Details of dividends are set out in note 14
to the financial statements.

Summary Financial Information
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
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financial statements is set out below.

Results 7
Year ended 31 December
BE+Z-ZA=1t—HLEFE
2018 201 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F T—tF IFT-RF T—AF — U4
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FHET FHET FHET
REVENUE W= 2,451,874 2,339,524 2,216,082 2,535,818 2,383,127
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B AR A 227,076 675,459 158,447 298,588 268,557
INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrEFimEx (75,911) (180,160) (60,045) (97,014) (80,464)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEBERAN 151,165 495,299 98,402 201,574 188,093
Attributable to: AT AL FEAS -
Owners of the Company NAFEE A 151,165 495,299 98,402 201,574 188,093
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Summary Financial Information (continued)
Assets and Liabilities

BB ERBE @)
BEERERE

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—BE-NFE —T—+F ZT—FRF T—HF TNNOF

HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

FET FEIL FET FEL FEIL

TOTAL ASSETS BEHAE 3,290,251 3,249,851 2,495,379 2,508,835 2,409,264
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEHAE (958,532) (882,741) (775,892) (718,012) (664,699)
2,331,719 2367,110 1,719,487 1,790,823 1,744,565

The above summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities
of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to HK$998,506,000, of which HK$29,569,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year after the reporting period.
The amount of HK$998,506,000 includes the Company’s share
premium and contributed surplus of HK$767,760,000 in aggregate at
31 December 2018, which may be distributed provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

BRI R E LA BRI —EE D

[
RRABRAFE RS EFBFEN B REK
BEsE 29 °

BrRBEERE
READREHEREARHSHEE - B
5 T 8 4 8 AR ) AR SR R AR 8 R L 9 1)
RERFRIRZHARL o

BE BOHEALQT LHES

AR REERMBRRARNAFERERBE -
BREHEARFN EHES o

At 5k
RZE—N\FE+ZA=1+—8 KR FEEH
ERERAZEERE(—NAAN—FEH = &
RE RIBE]) FTE R ] H 5 R F# & 998,506,000
BT - B 29,569,000 T E R HREBREAEH
BEREBEAIAFENRARERE B E
998,506,000 B T SR BB AR AR ZZE—N
FH+_A=+—HORODREREHEKE T
767,760,000 7T - MEREEZ D IKKREE B&
ARalBee TNBBEKBREFENDHE
% RIJRED REBEERE ©



ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % % / EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED % #jJ7 #% it 4 Fit 2 5]

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EoE

Charitable Contributions
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$9,048,000 (2017: HK$8,536,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
and purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
less than 30% of the total sales and purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Man Tai (Chairman)
(appointed on 23 August 2018)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive Officer)
Madam Ngok Ming Chu
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen
Ms. Lu Qun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

Prof. Lee T.S.

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of association,
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, Mr. Lau Siu Ki and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM").

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Cheng Man Tai will retire at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr. Lee Kwan Hung and Prof. Lee T. S. pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”), and as at the date of this report, still considers them to be
independent.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 28 to 32 of the annual
report.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, subject to the
applicable laws, every director of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of his/her office. The Company has
taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of
the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr. Cheng Man Tai, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Mr.
Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun, have each entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years commencing on
23 August 2018, 25 March 2018, 1 December 2017, 22 September 2017
and 2 February 2019, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has been appointed
for a term of two years commencing on 25 November 2018.

Under the service agreement, after each complete year of service, the
remuneration payable to each of the executive directors may, subject
to the discretion of the Company’s board of directors, be increased by
not more than 10% and the executive directors are entitled to a
discretionary management bonus provided that the total amount of
bonuses payable to all the executive directors for that year shall not
exceed 8% of the audited consolidated profit after tax of the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Emolument Policy and Directors’ Remuneration
The Group’s emolument policy is formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and is reviewed regularly. Subject
to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide discretionary
bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their contribution to the
Group. The primary goal of the emolument policy with regard to the
remuneration packages of the Group's executive directors is to enable
the Group to retain and motivate executive directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against corporate
objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group's remuneration packages include
basic salaries, discretionary bonuses and housing benefits.

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

Save for transactions as disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements,
no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV {&1
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

EERITHAZARS R EERMH
Eé&/ﬂg
RZZE—N\F+_A=1+—H8 EERITHE
HRARFKERB LB (TERELFRBE
[ 5 MEAE RG] ]) B XVER) AR A K A6 7
DA ZBERR AR R RIRIEE H M B EIEG
FIEFEMNELMANERS AR KA
BIBELFMETAESETESFRHNZRESTER

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by ([1Z <7 BI| |) 58 &0 A 7] K B <2 BT B9 1 58 Mook
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows: BT
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: AN R EBREIIFE -
Percentage of
the Company’s
Capacity and Number of issued share
Name of director nature of interest shares held capital
HARDATF ST
EENSR SHORERME FrEROEE BAMNE DL
Mr. Cheng Man Tai Interest of controlled 249,137,574 58.98
corporations (N(‘){e 1)
B R E S| N (Kia1)
Beneﬁcialgvvner 2,983,688 0.71
ExnEEA
Interest of spouse 2,334,369 0.55
(Note 2)
fe (B (Kiaz2)
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Interest of controlled 249,137,574 58.98
corporatlgrls (No‘(e 1)
ERR L ZPEH A El R (Kia1)
Benefigiglgwner 2,334,369 0.55
EmEAA
Interest of spouse 2,983,688 0.71
(Nq(e 2)
BB (Btat2)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza Beneﬁcialgvvner 26,990,478 6.39
g+ EmEA A
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen Beneﬁcialgvvner 513,793 0.12
EER A EmEA A
Ms. Lu Qun Beneficial owner 1,024,057 0.24
EeRf ExnBEEA
Mr. Lau Siu Ki Beneﬁcialgvvner 768,000 0.18
RBELE EmEA A
Mr. Leg Kwan Hung Beneﬁcialgvvner 522,000 0.12
PR E BB A
Prof. Lee T.S. Beneﬂoal owner 604,000 0.14

FREHE
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and

4|||'IT|

ESERTHARNKRO RABRDH

Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares X &KX E (&)
(continued)
Notes: KteF -

Z % B % o B & Harmonious World Limited
(['Harmonious World | ) Bz Fairmout Investments Limited
([Fairmout Investments]) 3 /8 H 247,848,510 % A%
15 1,289,064 i% P& 15 ° Harmonious World 2 ]
BHEHREE RERARL LS H59.00% &
40.91%#& 5 ° Fairmout Investments 7 Bl B3 &8 &
TS R ERATR A B H 50% K2 50% fE e

1. These shares are held as to 247,848,510 shares by Harmonious World 1.
Limited ("Harmonious World") and as to 1,289,064 shares by Fairmout
Investments Limited (“Fairmout Investments”). Harmonious World is
owned as to 59.09% by Mr. Cheng Man Tai and as to 40.91% by Madam
Ngok Ming Chu. Fairmout Investments is owned as to 50% by Mr.
Cheng Man Tai and as to 50% by Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

2. Madam Ngok Ming Chu is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Man Ta. 2. ERRLZTAESELEZES -

PAEEESEE S BARETR

Long positions in ordinary shares of an associated corporation:

Percentage of
the associated

Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number nature of issued share
Name of director corporation Company of shares interest capital
IEREEE
AR R BRITRA
EEnA HEEE AR KB & RBEE EEME WEDL
Mr. Cheng Man Tai Harmonious  Ultimate holding 5791 shares of Beneficial 59.09
World company USS$1 each owner
BHRLLE RRER AR 5791 IREAR BEEERA
EE13ET
B AR 19
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Harmonious  Ultimate holding 40.09 shares of Beneficial 4091
World company USS$1 each owner
ERAKRZ L RARERRRA] 40.09 iR & ik BEEERA
E{E 15T
Colibeny
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the directors ~ Br EXIREEN RZE—N\F+_A=+—

and chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(EROFIEE:

PREVIE R SOR R ©

SFRIZEB

B BEARREFEMITRAHNARRHE
EE MR AR R P A REE
7 MG GROIE 352 AT A B LM A S

FokR - SIRBIRAE PIRN/NCIPNE 33
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any of the directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2018, the following interests of 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company (other than the interests of the
directors of the Company as disclosed above) were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

EERERDNEFVER
ENEEHFFEANEBIR DT NAENT
BN F N EA R EERENEBBER
REEDRESMER  RETETEZSE
Mo RRR] - HEERA RS EAAH B QF I
B AR FEHEE ST RBETAEMLEA
BEEANZFER -

FTERRREMALTRKRG RABBERKR
7R E R

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H UTAL(EX
FIE B A RRAESERSRIN RAQEE %
TR R 5% A EBRALRRBIRIEES
NEREEHIE 336 iR FEMZ i m s

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: AN R E BRI E -
Percentage of
the Company’s
Capacity and Number of issued share
Name nature of interest shares held capital
HARQTE BT
i B RERME s & B BAEANBED L
Harmonious World Beneficial owner 247,848,510 5867
(Note 1)
EmEAA (HfaE1)
Pandanus Associates Inc. Interest of controlled 51,796,000 12.26
corporations (Note 2)
SRS A A (K1 2)
Pandanus Partners L.P. Interest of controlled 51,796,000 12.26
corporations (Note 2)
SPEHIA B R (K1t 2)
FIL Limited Investment manager 37,520,000 8.88
WEKIE
Sinowide Investments Limited Beneficial owner 30,000,000 7.10
ExRBEEA
Fidelity Funds Beneficial owner 26,739,000 6.33

ERBEAA
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)
Notes:

1. The relationship between Harmonious World, Mr. Cheng Man Tai and
Madam Ngok Ming Chu is disclosed under the section “Directors’ and
chief executive's interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” above.

2. Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of Pandanus Partners L.P.
who in turn owns or controls one-third or more of voting rights in FIL
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date of
this report.

FERRREMATRIRG RAEBR

VRS (4)
HisE -

1. Harmonious World + 88813 50 4 R ERA TR 22 1
ZHENBEREER EXES RITHREHRD
[& 10 RABRARR (D Bz Rk B | AT ©

2. Pandanus Associates Inc. & Pandanus Partners
LP.EEBERA - BEWEAIITHIFIL Limited
=92~ LRI o

R EXEBEEN  RZE-NF+A=+—
B BEAL(ERdER X [EFERITHER
Rt RABRE IR D R MR B | — B AR
RIEERINRARTRMDSABERD R ES
IR 8 55 N BRI B (6 ) 55 336 16 78 A 85 ) 2 3K
KB o

REARFRE
mﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%@m“ﬁﬁﬂ LA R S E PR
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Continuing Connected Transactions

4|||'I'f|

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected ~ RAER » KEBET T AT HEBER S %
transactions, details of which are disclosed in compliance with the £ X Z/zEERE LTRAFE 4AZENRER
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. I HE 55 o

(1) Purchase of furniture and decoration services (1) REERAREERE

On 22 December 2017, the services agreement which was
entered into between the Company, certain subsidiaries of the
Group and the related companies in relation to the purchase of

RIZE—+F+-A-+-H AREK
AEEETHBAREBEEARAN -F
—E+ AT - HEZBERBE R

furniture and services of decoration for counters and shops as REERB AR EAER ([ ux—rﬁlﬁﬂ
well as different types of moulds (the “Services”) on 22 December R ERNE = EmECE BEEH

2014 had been further renewed for another term of three years
commencing on 1 January 2018 after the expiry of the third term
(the “Existing Services Agreement”). The related companies are
controlled by an executive director of the Company. Further
details were disclosed in the Company's announcement dated
22 December 2017

On 7 September 2018, another services agreement was entered
into between the Company, certain subsidiaries of the Group

E:?—AE—H—Eﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬁﬂﬁ
BRG] - ZEEARBABAARQR
—RHITEBIIER o E—HFBRAR
ABRA—E—+tF+_A=-+=-HHARQ
EHREE -

RZZE—N\FALALH ARFAREAEE
ETHEBARE AR LA ARRRTE

and a related company in relation to the Services from a related %E‘jﬁ% P& N 5] 5 —IH
company controlled by close family members of the above 5% % Al 75 FE 8 B AR 7S 5 5 ([ 37 AR S
executive director of the Company (the “New Services ZD e MR HEE TN RETZR SN
Agreement”). The annual cap amounts for the transactions INERGHEE NGETERLZHE -
contemplated under the New Services Agreement for each of —EF+ AT HULEFESFZFE
the three years ending 31 December 2020 shall be shared with TRERE - E—FFHIBERARRRAC

that of the Existing Services Agreement. Further details were
disclosed in the Company’'s announcement dated 7 September
2018.

The continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
above services agreements would only be subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements and
are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the Listing Rules.

- \FENALHNHREPRKE -

R4 bl AR 7 15 S B 1T RO R B R E X
5 RBETLETRAUTHSRR  FEE
’f?&/‘iﬁﬁfﬁi - I A]EFA o 18 ST LR

REERRTE -
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

(2) Lease of warehouse
A subsidiary of the Company has been leasing a warehouse in
Hong Kong from an executive director of the Company. The
continuing connected transaction under the tenancy agreement
constitutes a de minimis transaction under the Listing Rules and
is exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

(3) Consultancy fee

A substantial shareholder who is the spouse of an executive
director of the Company has been re-engaged as a consultant of
the Company for a term of one year with effect from 25 March
2018. The continuing connected transaction under the
consultancy agreement also constitutes a de minimis transaction
under the Listing Rules, and is exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The substantial shareholder has been appointed as an executive
director with effect from 23 August 2018 and ceased to be a
consultant of the Company effective on the same day.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions of the Group
are set out in note 13(a) to the financial statements.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions disclosed in (1) above and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The total amount in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed in (1) above during the year under review has not exceeded
the annual cap for the transactions.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above,
the directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules during the year under review.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The Company has also received a letter from Ernst & Young, the
Company’s auditor, to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued the letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed in (1) above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules confirming that nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe the continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(i) have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap disclosed in
previous announcement of the Company.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 is provided in the sections “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s
Statement”, and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on
page 3, pages 8 to 11, and pages 13 to 23 respectively of this annual
report. For environmental policies and performance, compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations, and a description of relationships
with key stakeholders, please refer to the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” which will be available on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited together
with this Annual Report.

Auditor
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for the re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Man Tai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2019
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e
EY:

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Embry
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 72 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B ZATERERATDEERRE
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address

BREESEE
FRRETFHERERMANERHE  RY
AG AV BHRENBARSEENSTR - &
LEREERMBFBRBEAMHTHRRMLA
EARETEEN - RMATSHELIHEEHR
BEBRNER - RTIRFEEMS - RABEZ
R TRHEMERATREEZEFENTA -

BPERREIT T ARE [HBHEPBLFaA 55 A
BRERAENEL] BOMENEE  BFEE
ZEFEEMEML - Bt - ROIVBETBEAT
B WEHBMHRAMBRRERERR
AR R - AW EARF (BREEENT
SIAMEREAIEFF) AR - BRI BEH %R
EUBRRABROBAELIZEER -

the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed BB E WM

Key audit matter the key audit matter RREITEE REBEETEE
Inventory provision FERE

As at 31 December 2018, the We tested the ageing analysis of RZZE—NEFE+=F EMZAE &
Group had net inventories of the Group's inventories. We =+—H - EfEHN FENFHIN -
HK$776,367,000, representing 70%  recalculated the inventory FIFE B7763670008 fIRIE EEEMK
and 24% of the Group's current provision under the Group's T DREEREREN FTEHTEFTE R
assets and total assets, respectively. policy and assessed the MEBEENBEEMN H TARAAEEFE
The estimation of the inventory assumptions being used in the 70% K 24% o EFEE BEBRERAER B
provision requires significant inventory provision calculation by ~ H{HEtEEEEEELY B —3ME - I ERE

management judgement, which
includes the recoverability of the
cost of inventories, the nature and
condition of inventories, the
marketability of finished goods and
the future usage of raw materials.

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the
details of inventory provision are
included in notes 3 and 20 to the
financial statements.

reviewing the basis, the rationale
and the consistency of the
inventory provision policy,
considering the historical and
current inventory ageing
information and taking into
account the historical sales
pattern of aged inventories.

EXRHE - BREFEX
AR E - FEE
HEEMART - HAK M
T35 MR B 4 89 R 2R {2
RER

SEHATEBEE X
FEREFBEHNG
FERRMTEE3 R 20 o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
T S A% BRI R (A

FRETEH )

How our audit addressed RPN E ST
Key audit matter the key audit matter BRENEE REBRETEE
Fair value estimation of BREWELNFENMGE
investment properties
As at 31 December 2018, the We considered the objectivity, NRZE—NF+=-A KMPEEEESEEMR
Group had investment properties  independence and expertise of =+—H ' E5EKN ERANIISEHERD
of HK$387,639,000, representing the external valuers engaged by & ff% ¥ 5387639000 BHEM B ME
17% and 12% of the Group's net management, and assessed the B DRIEER B E£H UIEDEMR
assets and total assets, respectively.  property related data, including EEFEENMBEEY BHEE  BFEINIE
The estimation of the fair value of  estimates used by the external 17%& 2% I EYHF EMERNMG- &
investment properties requires valuers. Such procedures ATENGAFTEEE LEFREKHESH
significant management included comparing therentand  EB{EH B AHEH - 518 SHHEEBESHEE
judgement. Management engages — term periods against the existing [BRERINE LB WEETOLE &
external valuers to support its lease agreements, performing HEREEMENAT BRI (BIFE
determination of the individual fair ~ market research on key valuation 1§ ° Py 28 & AL X F
value of the investment properties. parameters including the TSRS ) EITH IS

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the fair
value measurement of investment
properties are included in notes 3
and 17 to the financial statements.

capitalisation rate and market
rent of similar properties and
performing a sensitivity analysis
on the fair value estimation. We
also involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us in
reviewing the external valuation
methodologies. We then
assessed the disclosures relating
to the assumptions used in
determining the fair value.

BEHEIRRANEA
FEEOEABRED
BN R B AN 53
17 °

K XHQFEME
ETHREDN - &
MEBFAFBESR
ENCIE A RE SRl
fHEEE R K E T
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Key audit matters (coniinued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

FRETEH )

BREITEE

RMeEs M
RERRETEER

Impairment assessment of
Other Asset

As at 31 December 2018, the
Group had Other Asset (as defined
in note 19 to the financial
statements) of HK$407,273,000,
representing 17% and 12% of the
Group's net assets and total assets,
respectively. Under the annual
impairment testing, the Group
conducted the impairment
assessment by comparing the net
carrying amount of Other Asset
with its fair value as determined
based on the valuation performed
by external valuers and a method
of valuation which involved certain
assumptions, including gross unit
rate per square meter. The
assumptions used in the valuation
have involved significant
management judgement.

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the
details of impairment assessment
of Other Asset are included in
notes 3 and 19 to the financial
statements.

With regard to management'’s
impairment assessment of Other
Asset, we reviewed the
objectivity, independence and
expertise of the external valuers
engaged by management and
assessed the related data and
assumptions being adopted,
including unobservable inputs
and other estimates, by
comparing key valuation
parameters including the gross
unit rate per square meter with
market information. We involved
our valuation specialists to assist
us in reviewing the valuation
methodologies and key valuation
parameters on the fair value
estimation of Other Asset. We
also assessed the disclosures
relating to the assumptions used
in determining the fair value in
the consolidated financial
statements.

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.

The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.
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Other information included in the Annual Report
(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

FHABNEMES (&)
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Chan Kam Yee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

R E TS

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—/\&#+=-A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
KiaE FET FHET
REVENUE Ik & 5 2,451,874 2,339,524
Cost of sales HERK A (491,847) (514,032)
Gross profit EF 1,960,027 1,825,492
Gain on the Relocation Arrangement B TP s 19 - 449,980
Other income and gains, net HAWA R g - JFHE 6 72,513 89,403
Selling and distribution expenses HE Mo EFY (1,514,093) (1,420,233)
Administrative expenses TR (266,038) (251,056)
Other expenses Hibfx 7 (12,445) (8,823)
Finance costs Bh & pk AN 8 (12,888) (9,304)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B AT A 9 227,076 675,459
Income tax expense FriSfiF X 12 (75,911) (180,160)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RATHEE AEML
ATTRIBUTABLETO FERF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 151,165 495,299
EARNINGS PER SHARE KAGEE AEMS
ATTRIBUTABLETO BREF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 15
— Basic (HK cents) — B (AL 35.79 118221
— Diluted (HK cents) — 58 OBl) 35.79 11821
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
m/T\ & é\@q&ﬁlﬂ%

Year ended 31 December 2018 #EZ—FT—)\F+-A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—Z-N\F —ZE—+tF
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FHET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA 151,165 495,299
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hih2mEBA A (BX)
(EXPENSE)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REZHEJEEFHEEEEN
that may be reclassified to the income statement ~ Hfp 2@ A (FAX) :
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of WERINESEFTEE 2
foreign operations E N =X (144,995) 158,865
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REZEESE I EHDEETIEEN
that will not be reclassified to the income statement  H A A/ (Fx) :
in subsequent periods:
Revaluation surplus EHHRER 5,251 6,636
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation REEEMGBEIRZ
reserve (note 28) EIEFRETE (K7 28) (1,313) (1,659)
Net other comprehensive income that will notbe  REZHMAE EMHEEBHN
reclassified to the income statement E 2w AFERE
in subsequent periods 3,938 4977
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FEHHZERA (BX)
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HKRFHE (141,057) 163,842
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE ARABEEAEEEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ZHEB AL

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY 10,108 659,141
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR A BRI R

31 December 2018 =E— \F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
KiaE FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W -~ BE M&E 16 1,219,470 1,162,378
Investment properties LEHE 17 387,639 367,954
Prepaid land lease payments T i & FRIE 18 37,326 40,564
Other Asset HE&EE 19 407,273 431,807
Deferred tax assets ERLFR I A B 28 88,286 92,797
Deposits and other receivables Y a N E b R U Fk T8 22 39,066 76,099
Total non-current assets EmEEELLE 2,179,060 2,171,599
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories ER{ 20 776,367 655,453
Trade receivables FEWE SR 21 75,240 112,205
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRRIE -« iRe REM B
receivables A 22 95,991 75,883
Tax recoverable E4EE R 5,179 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERREZEY 23 158,414 234,711
Total current assets MEVEEMRE 1,111,191 1,078,252
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B SRR 24 125,042 56,000
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T EIRITER 25 214,059 136,778
Tax payable P& I8 19,224 21,297
Other payables and accruals H At fE T RIB R FEET R IE 26 228,257 322,564
Total current liabilities EAREAE 586,582 536,639
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEEE 524,609 541613
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,703,669 2,713,212
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥RBERE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHEIRTTIER 25 213,000 189,278
Deferred liabilities FEIEBE 27 2,245 189
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFIEE E 28 156,705 156,635
Total non-current liabilities EmEBERE 371,950 346,102
Net assets BEFE 2,331,719 2,367,110
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners AATEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital [N 29 4,224 4224
Reserves E] 30 2,327,495 2,362,886
Total equity B 2,331,719 2,367,110

Cheng Man Tai
L1 e

Director

EE

Cheng Pik Ho Liza

-

EEp

Director

Ex
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
52 HE 25 5 ) %

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—/\&#+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANRHEEAEL
Reserves
51
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset  statutory  Exchange
Share  premium Contributed revaluation reserve fluctuation  Goodwill  Retained Total Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve reserve profits  reserves equity
b3 BEEf LERRR EXKD
BA RER EHERH e EERES e HERE REEF Ak ags
Notes HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
fizt FET AT FEr FEr FEr FET AT FEr FEr FEr
(note 30) (note30) (hote 30)
(Hits30) (Hizt30) (Kiit30)
At 31 December 2017 i S
+-A=+-H 4,224 386,512 122,610 8,313 162,410 76,820 (3,168) 1,609,389 2,362,886 2,367,110
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 15 RARE BT 3R 2E8
FISRTE 22 - - - - - - - 3,079 3,079 3,079
At 1 January 2018 (restated) R=F-\5—A—-AH
(f38%) 4,224 386,512 122,610 8,313 162,410 76,820 (3,168) 1,612,468 2,365,965 2,370,189
Profit for the year FEEA - - - - - - - 151,165 151,165 151,165
Revaluation surplus R 16 - - - 5,251 - - - - 5,251 5,251
Deferred tax debited toasset ~ RAEEMGEET®RZ
revaluation reserve EIEHR 2 - - - (1,313) - - - - (1313) (1,313)
Exchange differences related o~ T BIFIMEBFEE 2
foreign operations EXZR - - - - - (144,995) - - (144,995) (144,995
Total comprehensive income/  ERZEWRA,/(FI%)
(expense) for the year it - - - 3,938 - (144,995) - 151,165 10,108 10,108
2017 final dividend declared ERREA=E—tF
and paid RERE. 14 - - - - - - - (33,793)  (33793)  (33,793)
2018 interim dividend 2 \EHRERE 14 - - - - - - - (14785) (14785  (14,785)
Transfer from retained profits ~~ BEREB &7 - - - - 18,183 - - (18,183) - -
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+-A=+—H 4,224 386,512 122,610 12,251 180,593 (68,175) (3,168) 1,696,872 2,327,495 2,331,719
At 1 January 2017 R=E—t&—f—H 4166 369,644 122610 3336 144,249 (82,045) (3,168) 1,160,695 1715321 1,719,487
Profit for the year EREA - - - - - - - 495299 495299 495,299
Revaluation surplus EffRH% 16 - - = 6,636 = = - - 6,636 6,636
Deferred tax debited toasset ~ WEEEGEEIRZ
revaluation reserve RIEHE 28 - - - (1,659) - - - - (1,659) (1,659)
Exchange differences related o~ FTERIMEEFTEE Z
foreign operations ERER - - - - - 158,865 - - 158,865 158,865
Total comprehensiveincome R 2ERALE
for the year = = = 4977 = 158,865 = 495299 659,141 659,141
2016 final dividend declared BERREA=E—RF
and paid RARS 14 - - - - - - - (17916) (17.916) (17916)
2017 interim dividend “E-HFRERE 14 - - - - - - - (10528)  (10528)  (10528)
Shares issued in lieu of REBEREMET
cash dividend pd 3l 29 58 16,868 - - - - - - 16,868 16,926
Transfer from retained profits EES e = = - - 18,161 = = (18,161) = =
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF
+=-A=t+—-H 4224 386,512 122610 8313 162410 76820 (3,168) 1,609,389 2,362,886 2,367,110
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e Bl e E R

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—/\&#+=-A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —FLF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Hia FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEECHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax [ 5 A o A 227,076 675,459
Adjustments for: PR
Finance costs B & B AR 8 12,888 9,304
Bank interest income IRITHIBHA 6 (3,028) (2,256)
Interest accretion on non-current receivables  3f B EA fE U 3k 18 # F1] 538 A1 6 (1,757) =
Depreciation e 9 75,807 57,218
Amortisation of prepaid land TNt AERIEZ
lease payments b 9 977 988
Gain on the Relocation Arrangement Wi LB e 19 - (449,980)
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE MEEWmE  BER
property, plant and equipment, net BEBEB 2B EE 9 1,132 287
Write-off of deposits B& 2 M 9 2,265 -
Write-back of provision PREFERERRD
for obsolete inventories, net FEE 9 (18,946) (6,253)
Impairment of trade receivables, net RUE SRR E - F58 9 5,624 2,784
Changes in fair value of investment BN EE )
properties 6 (9,000) (4,000)
293,038 283,551
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERD, () (101,968) 10,147
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables JEURE S ER TR,/ (18 h0) 31,341 (29,769)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, JEMEIE - e R E b ENERTE
deposits and other receivables wA (0 16,361 (27,244)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FENE SERZIE I, () 69,042 (31,678)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables o fE N R IE R E ST 2R IR
and accruals 20 i) (90,202) 34,247
Increase/(decrease) in deferred liabilities EIEE G 2,056 (1,700)
Cash generated from operations KBRS 219,668 237,554
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNEBREH (4,298) (813)
Overseas taxes paid EATEINHIR (72,593) (68,237)
Net cash flows from operating activities KRR 7S IRAFRE 142,777 168,504
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

m/:ﬁ/\fﬁ, ILE%% l“E

Year ended 31 December 2018 #EZ—FT—)\F+-A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—=E-N\F —t%F
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
HisE FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BF A 3,028 2,256
Additions to prepaid land lease payments #HnTaft + &S 2 0E 18 - (6,025)
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BERKEIEER
plant and equipment 16 (228,473) (100,234)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - KERZEIEE
property, plant and equipment ZFTiS5RIA 122 130
Net cash flows used in investing activities KE R IRE M B (225,323) (103,873)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMELTH2RERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings HTIERITE R 230,000 102,169
Repayment of bank borrowings BERRITER (128,997) (130,946)
Dividends paid ETIRE 14 (48,578) (11,518)
Interest paid EAFIE (12,888) (9,304)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing mEEH2EERASCGRE)
activities FEE 39,537 (49,599)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReERESEENZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i CRd) B (43,009) 15,032
Cash and cash equivalents at FzBReRReEEY
beginning of year 234,711 190,187
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREFH L FH
changes, net (33,288) 29,492
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZEEREAESZEY
AT END OF YEAR 158,414 234,711
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERREEEMERZDWT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTAEER 23 146,947 234,711
Non-pledged time deposits with REARRINBAEALRKR=EA
original maturity of less than three 2 AR TE BT R
months when acquired 23 11,467 -
Cash and cash equivalents BERIRESZEEY 158,414 234,711
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1.

2.1

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August 2006 under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and the
principal place of business of the Company is located at 7th
Floor, Wyler Centre II, 200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 38 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during
the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Harmonious World Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"),
which is considered by the directors as the Company’s ultimate
holding company.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HKS$'000) except where
otherwise indicated.

2.1

AEER
RARRRZZEERFNAZTHLERE
RERERERNEANTA(—NAN—FX
Bl= - giRE RER]) RFA S S TMK
Y AEERRBERAR o AR R AT
= R #h iE 4 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the
Cayman Islands » 1482 &l 89 3 2 & K
BRBAFRZRAEDB200RE R
POZHI7E o

ARAEBEBARELR - HHH
R -ES LN E e
5380 FRARENEBEBHME L E
ERED -

K X &) A Harmonious World Limited & Bt
A &) »* Harmonious World Limited 73 &
BEXZHEE(RBERES ] FMK
' & F 7R A Harmonious World Limited
BRI REERAT

2HEE

ZEVBRRRBEF B SIS BM
MEBVBREEL ([ BEMEREE
A1) (BREAETEMBMELER - BB
SETEA(TFEGTER ) ki) - &
BARER R REERAHRPIBES
o ZF W MERRIEE LKA M
2 EREMERAEAATVEFE KR
BRI ZEUBRRIAETES
PIBEESRABRESZITT(TAT) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(@ the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1
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2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.1
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the consolidated income statement. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

2.2

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 B RRBBREE®)
Disclosures (continued)
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 2, amendments to HKFRS MRBEBSRELERFE2RIER] B
4 and Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not WM ERENEI4RET R =—F—HF
relevant to the preparation of the Group's financial statements, BT NFHRIR)FZ I R SR
the nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are ERMBHRRER  FI KB Z2E
described below: BMBmMEEN 2 ME R B FHAN
T
(@)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial (a) BEYBBREEAFEIN : 25T
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual ARZZTE-—N\F-—HA—Hxz&
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing RIEMEEHBER - UKESE
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial BEFTERERLMT A - #F
instruments: classification and measurement, RRFTE  ZEEAELEFHT
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group has BEetmmAa=E1H :: o
recognised the transition adjustments against the e RERE PG AE
applicable opening balances at 1 January 2018. ER_ZE—/\F—HA—-B®@RE
Therefore, the comparative information was not restated M EEERV A4S AR A T 2X o
and continues to be reported under HKAS 39. The It AIEALEE RN T ET
following information sets out the impacts of adopting W B IRIE R B2 %ER| 53958
HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position, W o L NER SR ANE B
including the effect of replacing HKAS 39's incurred % o & 2 Bl 55 9 SR 3 B B AR R
credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9's expected credit N E S BENEBIIERE%E
losses ("ECLs"). Al oM IEMEEBERRSE
BEIEREFMELENEER
EEGENTE -
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under RZZE—N\F—H—B8 ' BESHE
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at BEETERFE R ERER
1 January 2018 is as follows: BEBMBRELEFIORAE
BR¥ETERAAT -
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement ECL measurement
BHEIERE9RHE RHEEFR BRUERSENFIRHE
Category Amount Amount Amount Category
Ll ) &t &t 5l
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
FAT FATL TAT
Financial assets EREE
Trade receivables EUE 587 L&R' 112,205 - 112,205 AC
Financial assets included in JAERTE B2k
prepayments, deposits and Hity U IE 2
other receivables THEE L&' 53,031 - 53,031 AC
Cash and cash equivalents Re RRELEEY L&R! 234,711 - 234711 AC
399947 - 399947

There was no significant impact for replacing the
aggregate opening impairment allowance under HKAS
39 with ECL allowances under HKFRS 9 on the above
financial assets as at 1 January 2018.

R-ZZF-NF—A—8 &FEHM
BHmEEYNFIRMKBFE G
RERIF39H - HEASREEDN
BEHEEEENERIREER
WHEELBEAZE -
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2.2 Changesin Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(a)

(b)

22 EBIIHRXESBHREE 2

(continued) (@) #&)
HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
BAGHENSERHE ERUMBREENEORIE
Category Amount Amount Category
/it &t )]
HKS'000 HKS'000
T FET
Financial liabilities tRAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t B ER1T S 2% 326,056 326,056 AC
Trade payables ERBZER 56,000 56,000 AC
Financial liabilities included in BEREREMERTER
other payables and accruals [EstHE eRAR 196,175 196,175 AC
578,231 578,231
1 L&R: Loans and receivables 1 L&R: B K FEU R IE
2 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised 2 AC: REHEKAtEZS R
cost BEXCHAR
HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 (b) BAUBMEERAF 15T REE

Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to
all revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
disclosures are included in note 5 to the financial
statements. As a result of the application of HKFRS 15,
the Group has changed the accounting policy with
respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

IR BB ERE 1N RESL
B/ BEGEANE 851‘?44?@
NABEZEE BRAOEOINE
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Disclosures (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method,
the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the
date of initial application or only to contracts that are
not completed at this date. The Group has elected to
apply the standard to contracts that are not completed
asat 1 January 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS
15 was recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits as at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information was not restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 11, HKAS 18
and related interpretations.

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 1 January 2018 as
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15:

22 EBIIHRXESBHREE 2

(%)
AEERABEW B HREERE
1SR R A EEWERAE
BMBHmE - RIBERTE &
ERAAEARERBFZHD
FrEARE - LA AR I B R
TRHER - AEBECEERZ
EREAN-_ZT—N\F—F—H
RARTRE AR

REEEANR_Z-—N\F—A—
BERRMNELMBRESERE
155RE RET R B H R D B F B H
VSRR AETTHAE - Hitt - FTHIL
REMITTES  THERES
BEERENS  BEGE
A 1858 MR R B AR AL -

ATHIN T N\F—H—H
RME LB mELERIF 155K
HREHRRBEFENDER

Increase/(decrease)
#hn, R )
Notes HKS'000
Bt at FEIT
Assets BE
Deferred tax assets FEIEFIEE B (i), (iii) (1,026)
Liabilities =N
Other payables and accruals H b fB 5008 & FE ST HUE (i), (ii) (4,105)
Equity fEm
Retained profits REE & A (i), (i) 3,079

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 31 December
2018 and for the year ended 31 December 2018 as a
result of the adoption of HKFRS 15. The adoption of
HKFRS 15 has had no impact on other comprehensive
income or on the Group's operating, investing and
financing cash flows. The first column shows the
amounts recorded under HKFRS 15 and the second
column shows what the amounts would have been had
HKFRS 15 not been adopted:

AT H R IR P B BT TSRS %
A 155%%  HBEE_T—N\F
+ZA=+—BRR=ZZ—N\F
+-A=1t—B8REHKRKXER
YENSE RNBEENERE
ERESHREEMBEIA - &
BEK REEE MEESHZ
ReneslETE - F—HAR
BEBMERELENFE ISHER
M F_HARRANEBH
EHMEERE 153NS -
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2.2 Changesin Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(b)

22 EFBRRSFREESRE)

(continued) (b) (&)
Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 Bz 22— N\ +_-_A=+—H
December 2018: IFFEFREEENERX
Amounts prepared under
HERENEE
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
PAE BB % LERBHE wm/
HEERE 155 HEER (D)
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i FET FEr FET
Revenue e (i 2451874 2451453 421
Cost of sales HEKA (i (491,847) (491,847) -
Gross profit E5 1,960,027 1,959,606 421
Profit before tax Bt A A 227,076 226,655 421
Income tax expense FriemEY (i) (i) (75911) (75,806) (105)
Profit for the year AREHEARA
attributable to owners G RR &R
of the Company 151,165 150,849 316
Eamings per share A/NCIE 2PN
attributable to owners of G SR &7
the Company
— Basic (HK cents) — BEAR (&) 3579 3571 008
— Diluted (HK cents) — &8 (M) 3579 3571 008
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2.2 Changesin Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(b)

22 EBIIHRXESBHREE 2

(continued) (b) ¢ fg)
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 RZE-N\F+A=+—HB#&
December 2018: & ,\ﬁ"zﬂﬁxﬁﬁ
Amounts prepared under
RENLE
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
NEBMERE  ABEEBHE wm/
ERIZE 155 REER (R2)
Notes HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000
fia FET FET FET
Deferred tax assets BRRIBEE () i) 88,286 89417 (1,131)
Other payables and accruals HiERNFTIRRERZIE  (),0) 228,257 232,783 (4,526)
Net assets BEZE 2,331,719 2,328,324 3,395
Retained profits REGF (i), i) 1,696,872 1693477 3395

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018 and
the reasons for the significant changes in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018 and the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
described below:

Notes:

(i)

Loyalty points VIP programme

The Group operates a loyalty points VIP programme,
which allows customers to accumulate points when
they purchase products in the Group's retail stores.
The points can be redeemed for cash coupons,
subject to a minimum number of points obtained.
Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the loyalty points
VIP programme offered by the Group resulted in the
allocation of a portion of the transaction price to the
loyalty points VIP programme using the fair value of
points issued and the recognition of deferred revenue
in relation to the points issued but not yet redeemed
or expired. The Group concluded that under HKFRS 15
the loyalty points give rise to a separate performance
obligation because they provide a material right to
the customers and allocated a portion of the
transaction price to the loyalty points awarded to the
customers based on the relative stand-alone selling
price. The Group determined that, considering the
relative stand-alone selling prices, the amount
allocated to the loyalty points VIP programme should
be lower compared to the previous accounting policy.
The deferred revenue related to this loyalty points VIP
programme was reclassified to contract liabilities and
the excess was adjusted to retained profits.

BE= T—AE A—BmA
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2.2 Changesin Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(b)
Notes:

0]

(iif)

(continued)

(continued)

Loyalty points VIP programme (continued)

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, contract liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, and deferred
tax assets were decreased by HK$4,105,000 and
HK$1,026,000, respectively, as at 1 January 2018, which
resulted in an increase in retained profits of
HK$3,079,000.

As at 31 December 2018, the adoption of HKFRS 15
resulted in a decrease in contract liabilities included in
other payables and accruals and deferred tax assets
amounting to HK$4,526,000 and HK$1,131,000,
respectively. Revenue was also increased by
HK$421,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Consideration received from customers in advance
Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from customers in
advance and deferred revenue arising from the loyalty
points VIP programme of the Group as other payables
and accruals. Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified
as contract liabilities which are included in other
payables and accruals.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
reclassified HK$90,754,000 from other payables and
accruals to contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in
relation to the consideration received from customers
in advance and deferred revenue arising from the
loyalty points VIP programme of the Group as at 1
January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15,
HK$42,875,000 was reclassified from other payables
and accruals to contract liabilities in relation to the
consideration received from customers in advance for
the sale of goods and deferred revenue arising from
the loyalty points VIP programme of the Group.

Other adjustments

In addition to the adjustments described above, other
items of the primary financial statements such as tax
was adjusted as necessary. Retained profits were
adjusted accordingly.
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2.2 Changesin Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(c)

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the
change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide
evidence of a change in use. The amendments have
had no impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

HK(IFRIO)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine
the date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to
the situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a
non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation
clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) is the date on which an entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. The interpretation has had no
impact on the Group's financial statements as the
Group’s accounting policy for the determination of the
exchange rate applied for initial recognition of non-
monetary assets or non-monetary liabilities is consistent
with the guidance provided in the interpretation.

22 EBIIHRXESBHREE 2

(c)

(d)

BEEGHERFERERFE
BIEAAYE (BRERNKME
FEYR) BARB LR EY X
BEFTAREL  EMEFEET
BEREMENESR LHEA
- e
BT -EEEEENEERAME
BB I et R E R Z (LA RE
IR RAFETHAKEENM B R
R PBRETE

EXR(BEBRTBREREEE
2)-REBELDRMERESES:
ERFEN R EBKESREHTE
NS RTE R ERIEEB EER
BENBR RUNEBEEXSH
HAIREHE B S BT - LR IE BB
BERARVRERHABEE &
ez (SHE—35) B ERM
EXNXS5AHAEEYISHER
SEE MM B M B E (Il anFE A 3K
IH) S IEEH A & (FlanEEWRA)
B> s W ERFE A R B M E L ©
MRERREBBEZAIBELZE
s lE - B BERBUERTES
SERFHFWETEMNRENZS B
B ARAEERETYZER
FEREENBBENERNGH
BERERERREENES — B
it z2 B AE BN EREK
W TIBKFFE -

87



88

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED % #j %7 ¥ Bt fi R 24 5] / ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S i o MY A (7))

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+-A=+—8

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material*

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to
focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020.

2.3
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Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e, the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e, the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group
plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to
recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at 1
January 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition,
the Group plans to apply the new requirements to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
measure the lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the Group's incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
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Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

As disclosed in note 31(b) to the financial statement, at 31
December 2018, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate
of approximately HK$241,626,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16,
certain amounts included therein may need to be recognised
as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. The right-of-use
asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by
the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within
12 months as of the date of initial application. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine the
amount of new right of use assets and lease liabilities to be
recognised arising from operating lease commitments upon
the adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking account into exemptions
mentioned above, the exception of short-term and low value
leases, and the effects of discounting.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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2.3

24

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and
penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be
applied retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date
of initial application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
from 1 January 2019. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

2.3
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in the income statement as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwiill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBRFEHE (&)

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or

disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the

fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) theentity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  theentity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
assets.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBRFEHE (&)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the
income statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant
portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 4.5% to 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment ~ 10% to 20%
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

Other asset

Other asset is the right to receive the new properties under a
relocation arrangement, further details of which are given in
note 19 to the financial statements. Such asset, being the
consideration to be received upon disposal of the original
properties under the relocation arrangement, is initially
recognised at its fair value. Subsequent to the initial
recognition, other asset is stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)"
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement in finance
costs for loans and in administrative expenses for receivables.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost is subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage2 —

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage3 —

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to administrative expenses in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018)"; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.

Financial guarantee contracts (policy under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability
at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow-moving
items. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by
the Group under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside the income statement is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China is subject to a withholding tax under the
prevailing tax rules and regulations of the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC").

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15

24

FESHBEBRE®)

Frig®i (&)

RIBPEARELMB(THE ) RITHRE
MAIROER - KRB AR BN BIKRE
Z W B ARz BB AN TRINR o

WA (B=F-N\NF—-A—H

EEA)

Mﬁ@)’f‘AﬁJE’JH&%ﬁ

KB TP AHNKRENE AR 2
Eéﬁ-:ui%:t%ﬁﬁj‘ﬁﬁwu /H\/i\ﬁg&ﬁgizlggﬁﬁ
BIE MR R B Z EE IR A R

Bz E-

EANTHNREREAIZESREN - A5
RESBEHAAEEREZEmARHE
EXFMBEES - I2REESHMH
IR ERIEROR - EERZRENHE
BT AR ERAIR - MR RE
Wan e B AAR REHHIREA B[ o

HeENTFEasAEFREBE—FNE
ABRENZ(BIERERIRBER
BIM@ERD - Rzl s8R
Bt UFEAAKEERF ZHARE
HMRERNEBRER ST RIRMELR
KRB - MENPTEES/AANEEIEHE
BFMNEARENSHRERS - A
RIFZ A MR WS BRERERM X
FAENANBEMELENNERX -
Edu%)f'1‘J‘,TA£51$§}“’“7¥<?%‘§D%‘JZHW%ZE@
BAOR—FNEH XHERTEEKN
BMERONFEERET BV ERE LR
FISHARTTRETNEETHE -

113



114

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED % #j %7 ¥ Bt fi R 24 5] / ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A BE R I A (A8

31 December 2018 =&

24

—N\E+=ZA=+—H

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

Other income
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FES:HEHME (8
(continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 WZER(EHANK2018F181H
January 2018) ZAl)
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic EREN@A A ERARERFE WA

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(@ interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received a consideration
(or an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in the construction cost of infrastructure projects, are
recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the income statement by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of these employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
income statement is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or income statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date
on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group'’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences as at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

As explained in note 28 to the financial statements, withholding
tax is levied on dividends to be distributed by subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008. Deferred tax is provided, at the applicable
withholding tax rate, on the undistributed earnings of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries that would be distributed to their
respective holding companies outside Mainland China in the
foreseeable future.

The Group's investment properties at fair value in Mainland
China are all held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation and they are considered to be held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Accordingly,
deferred tax on the Group's investment properties at fair value
is measured to reflect the tax consequences of recovering the
carrying amounts of the investment properties through use.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Fair value estimation of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a) by reference to independent valuations;

(b) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(©) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(d) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market
rates for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note
17 to the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region and customer type). The
provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note
21 to the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Inventory provision

The Group manufactures and sells goods and is subject to
changing consumer demands and fashion trends. As a result, it
is necessary to consider the recoverability of the cost of
inventories and the associated provision required. When
calculating the inventory provision, management considers the
nature and condition of inventories, as well as applying
assumptions around anticipated marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw materials.

Estimation of the fair value of Other Asset (as defined in
note 19) at its initial recognition

As disclosed in note 19, the carrying amount of Other Asset at
31 December 2017 was HK$431,807,000. Other Asset, being the
consideration received upon disposal of the Original Properties
under the Relocation Arrangement, is initially recognised at its
fair value and subsequently carries at cost less impairment. The
fair value of Other Asset, at its initial recognition at
HKS$416,744,000 has been arrived at on the basis of the
valuation performed by independent professionally qualified
valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuer has based on a
method of valuation which involves certain assumptions,
including gross unit rate per square meter. The assumptions
used in the valuation have involved significant management
judgement.

Impairment assessment of Other Asset

As disclosed in note 19, Other Asset is the right to receive the
new properties and is stated at cost less any impairment losses.
Under the annual impairment testing, an impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The Group
conducted the impairment assessment by comparing the net
carrying amount of Other Asset with its fair value as determined
based on the valuation performed by independent
professionally qualified valuers and a method of valuation
which involved certain assumptions, including gross unit rate
per square meter. The assumptions used in the valuation have
involved significant management judgement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A BE R I A (A8

—N\E+=ZA=+—H

Segment Information 4. DEER
The Group's primary operating segment is the manufacture and AEB 7 ETELKESIHBLLTINE - K
sale of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear, sleepwear and HE o~ kAKX~ BEER N Efth 2 B M EHE o
others. Since this is the only operating segment of the Group, AR ARNER W —KES I - T
no further analysis thereof is presented. In determining the BETNE—H 7 DN o REREEF 71
Group's geographical information, the revenue information is AR WEER NIRRT A
based on the locations of the customers, and the total non- Hit @ERHEE(RLEFRBEBEER
current assets information, other than deferred tax assets, is SN BRHZE ERTfeih A ER o
based on the locations of the assets.
Mainland China Hong Kong Others Total
ERBE o Hity @t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
S®-N\E ZF-LF ¥\ -TLF —¥-N\E T tF —R-N\F -TtF
HK$'000 K000 HKS'000 HKSO00  HK$'000 HKSO00  HK$'000 HKS000
FET FHET FET FHET FET FET FEx FET
Revenue from external customers ~ SNREF 2 Wiz 2,375,600 2258439 71,431 74,583 4,843 6,502 2,451,874 2,339,524
Non-current assefs SERBAE 1,991,688 1987426 99,086 91376 - - 2,000774 2078802
Capital expenditure incurred FRERFT
during the year 228,076 99,459 397 775 - - 228473 100234
For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, as no BHE —+tEEZT-N\F+=A
revenue from sales to any customer of the Group has =+— El Jj:ifth* - R AR B (A
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's total B ZEHE W ERME RNERE A=
revenue, no information about major customers is presented 10% LA | - I RIBIBE B M B mEE
under HKFRS 8. AIESREREERFPHER -
Revenue 5. W=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADITAT :
2018 2017
=2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FHEx
Revenue from contracts with customers U Y=E-YSr N )0 €
Sale of goods HEEMm 2,451,874 2,339,524
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5. Revenue (continued) 5. Ut (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEZEEFESHHNWRE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) STEREER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=-ZE—-NE+=A=+—H
HKS'000
FA&T
Business activities EKEH

Concessionary counters HEEE 1,820,817
Retail stores TEJEHE 237,582
Internet and wholesale H_EHE LR 388,632
Original design manufacturer (“ODM") [RE&ET Bl 4,843
2,451,874

Brands Y
Embry Form TR 1,113,604
Fandecie ok EE 615,805
Comfit Comfit 232,251
E-BRA E-BRA 246,213
LIZA CHENG LIZA CHENG 52,121
VU VU 115,227
|IADORE T 71,810
ODM products ODM Ef 4,843
2,451,874

Products Em
Lingerie MR 2,139,176
Sleepwear 1< 165,146
Swimwear KA 123,220
ODM products ODM Ef 4,843
Other products HMER 19,489

2,451,874
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5. Revenue (continued) 5.

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

W (&)

REZEFEHNKRE &)

() PEWBEERE)
TRETARE HRERMN KA
S AETRSHINALE
fEh - WHER FEE BB LT
HBREE :

2018
—EB-N\EF
HK$’000
FHT
Revenue recognised that was included in EHVEeRESESNAaED
contract liabilities at the beginning of PR HIU A -
the reporting period:
Sale of goods HEE® 90,754
(i)  Performance obligations iy BYEME
Information about the Group's performance obligations FEAEEREORENERH
is summarised below: PN
Sale of goods HES

The Group sells goods directly to retail customers via
retail stores, concessionary counters and internet. The
performance obligation is satisfied when the product is
transferred to the customers upon delivery of goods.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately
when the customers purchase the goods. The payment
is usually settled in cash or using credit cards.

The Group also sells goods to wholesalers. The
performance obligation is satisfied when control of the
products has been transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the wholesalers and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s
acceptance of the products. The payment is generally
due within one month, extending up to three months
for major customers, from delivery, except for certain
wholesalers, where payment in advance is normally
required.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 are not
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
because all the remaining performance obligations in
relation to the sale of goods are a part of contracts that
have an original expected duration of one year or less.

= =.0A
AEEEBRTES KT EER
EMBERRATERFPHES
Yo BHOBEERXNERKEE
R EXFBERME FL
BUAZRR BRI o 3R —ARIA
ReENERREE -

AEBETALEFHLEGR - B
HMBEEEEMMNIEFREINES
2R NEMXN FHEFE
WEREITRG AR B HERD
HERNER IRBBES—
BR FXEEFERERZ =
A(BEREBEREFE)  1ES
THEBERIN - —RFEREANN

e
N

ERAITHREEZR R-F
—NFE+t-A=t—HoET&H
TRABECRKEITRED RE
TR S EBILARET BHHRERM
APRE THERNEERHEESR
BOMESR TROEERRIATE
HHARB—FHATHELH—E

e
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6. Other Income and Gains, Net 6. HftARWz  FH
2018 2017
—Z-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FEIL
Other income Hitlr A
Subsidy income* AL A * 50,407 41,139
Gross rental income WA LBEE 18,861 16,361
Contingent rents receivable in respective of AR FH & Hy fE N A TH &
operating leases 682 725
Bank interest income |ITHEHA 3,028 2,256
Interest accretion on non-current receivables 3 B[V HA & U 238 #Y F) B4 AN 1,757 -
Royalty income BRI WA 121 159
Others Hi 2,753 2,180
77,609 62,820
Gains, net W FE
Foreign exchange differences, net EHER - ¥ (14,096) 22,583
Changes in fair value of investment "EMENFEES (T 17)
properties (note 17) 9,000 4,000
(5,096) 26,583
72,513 89,403
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this * UG A T2 S R (Ffa] R 3 L 2 1614 8t
income. B AEIF o

7. Other Expenses

7. EHMEX

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHT FETL
Charitable donation BEBHK 9,048 8,536

Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE MEwE  BEN
property, plant and equipment, net RIEER BB FE 1,132 287
Write-off of deposits e 2 MisE 2,265 =
12,445 8,823

8. Finance Costs 8. mEMRK

2018 2017
—2-N\F —E—F
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FEIT
Total interest on bank loans HIRTTIE B 12,888 9,304
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9.

Profit Before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

9. BK#H

a2 A
AEBEZBRBADRFNE MG GEA)

(crediting):
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—tF
HKS’000 HKS000
FHT FHETL
Cost of inventories sold* EEFERA* 491,847 514,032
Depreciation e 75,807 57218
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  FB{t +3th FH & 7k I8 7 B4 977 988
Minimum lease payments under ﬁ?«%l«/{—l—xlﬁﬁ%aﬁ%z
operating leases in respect of: KRB ERE
Land and buildings iiﬂz&%ﬂl 99,850 82,039
Contingent rents of retail outlets BEARANTES
in department stores Kk A E 516,345 541,284
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERNMAX (TREES
directors’ and chief executive's RATHR&REZM — Hat10)
remuneration — note 10):
Wages and salaries ITENRHS 689,808 649,172
Provision/(write-back of provision) for IR BE,
long service payments (B EREmE) 2,221 (1,700)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKFEF B 67,938 64,817
759,967 712,289
Auditor's remuneration ZEET N & 2,880 2,980
Advertising and counter decoration expenses &5 M HE {7 2 & 54 i 166,169 121,369
Write-back of provision for obsolete REFE RO
inventories, net (18,946) (6,253)
Write-off of deposits Re 2 MH 2,265
Impairment of trade receivables, net** FEWE 5 ERFURE - F5E** 5,624 2,784
Research and development expenditure R RFAERX 2,697 2,800
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE MEEME - WE MERE
property, plant and equipment, net BB ZEE - F58 1,132 287
Foreign exchange differences, net EHER - ¥ 14,096 (22,583)
Gross and net rental income MWL KFEE (19,543) (17,086)
Changes in fair value of investment properties & & ¥ % A F(EZ B (9,000) (4,000)
Bank interest income |ITHFEWA (3,028) (2,256)
Interest accretion on non-current receivables — FE 7% Eh & I FRIB B F 2 (1,757)
* The cost of inventories sold for the year included HKS 152,775,000 * EEFEKABESTHA f‘éjL 2

(2017: HKS128,050,000), relating to staff costs, depreciation of
manufacturing facilities and the write-back of provision for
obsolete inventories, net, which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed above for each type of expenses.

** The impairment of trade receivables, net, is included in

"Administrative expenses” on the face of the consolidated income

statement.

BITERKEGFEREME
15277500008 w( = & — £ F:
128,050,0008 7T ) ° B EIAERE INE ZLA
U _FHERE 2 SRR S5 o

FEWE 5 RR 506 E
Yezs ke [TTHFI ] A o

FREEEALE
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EERITHAR T
Remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, BEEABAXSIFMAER A B ([ B
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Frl) &z EmARRN(T EfRAlD - &E
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the AN EEBIEE 383(1)(), (b), (©) KO 1& » AR
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) Nl (HEEZFZER) BHIFE 230K
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of BT

the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2018 2017
—=E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Fees e 1,032 1,026
Other emoluments: Hime :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEYHZE 10,034 7,887
Bonuses* TEAL* 5,967 5,752
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREAET B R 43 36
17,076 14,701
@ Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments * ARNFRITEEGHEERE/A - M
which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the TEATL < BE Rl 7K 55 (3] 7 72 18 Yo FI B9 —

Group. EEALET -
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10. EERTHRARGTH 2

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continued)

2018 —E-N\E
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses contributions remuneration
e
)= 5:1954 BIREF
we EYAE A HEGER 1 55
HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Cheng Man Taif B R L LY - 1,424 638 7 2,069
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ERx+ - 4,037 2,022 18 6,077
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* BEELL" - 2,910 2,057 18 4,985
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen BErxs - 505 323 - 828
Ms. Lu Qun BEut - 1,158 927 - 2,085
- 10,034 5,967 43 16,044
Independent non-executive BUIHITESE
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki ZIBELE 344 - - - 344
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung ML E 344 - - - 344
Prof. Lee T.S. EREHK 344 - - - 344
1,032 - - - 1,032
1,032 10,034 5,967 43 17,076
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EERITHRERFM =)
Remuneration (continued)
2017 —E—+F
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e
EAR RRER
ik ENH= Te4L IR R

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TAET FET THET TR FET

Executive directors: HiTEE -
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ER LT - 3873 2397 18 6,288
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* BEET T - 2822 2,348 18 5,188
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen?# HEpkE - 128 92 - 220
Ms. LuQun BR LT - 1,064 915 - 1979
- 7,887 5,752 36 13,675
Independent non-executive BUFNTEE
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki BRELE 34 - - - 342
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung E3opid 342 = = = 342
Prof. Lee T.S. FREHR 342 - - - 342
1,026 - - - 1,026
1,026 7,887 5,752 36 14,701
¢ Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as a consultant of the Company (note f BHEALER=ZFE-NFNA=ZF=
13) and was appointed as an executive director of the Company HEHEA R Al (M1 aE13) I EZ T
on 23 August 2018. BERBIAITESE -
# Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, a director of the Company, is also the chief t AR AEFLEE e+ TEAAR A
executive officer of the Company. ZITRAEE, ©
o Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen was appointed as an executive director G HELEER_F—FFAA=F=
of the Company on 22 September 2017. HEZEBAERNEIHITESE -
There were no arrangements under which a director or the B B HARE A I R SR S 1T AR K S sk
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration RERBAEMFM 2 L -

during the year.
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11.

Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2017: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 to the financial statements above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2017: two)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % % / EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED % #jJ7 #% it 4 Fit 2 5]

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. ABEREHFAL
FRNAZREFALTEE=28F (=%
—tF: =F%) HFEMFBER LB
BRI FTI08M - FRNEBME (=
T—+tF : WAB)IEARRFESHITHE

highest paid employees who are neither directors nor chief HZEEHREEZHMFBWOT
executive of the Company are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREYAZE 2,899 2,851
Bonuses TE4T 2,435 1,831
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RAREAE IR 74 81
5,408 4,763

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest

BN A T AR 2 3FE S RIFTTIAR

paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following HESHEEASAOT
bands is as follows:
Number of employees
BEAE
2018 2017
—2-N\F —E—tF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 7 7T - =
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T - =
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T 2 2,500,000 7 75 1 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T 2 3,000,000 7 75 - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7T 2 3,500,000 7 75 1 =
2 2
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12.

Income Tax 12.
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%

(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in

Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable

elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in

the regions in which the Group operates.

Frsst
BAEFE mﬁmﬁEWMJEE%EE
ZERBOBRF - Z165%( T —+H4F :

16.5%) 2 B RAE B  E A5 R
BOER 2 BUBE A S EEEEBIHE
2 BRTRREH -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Current — Hong Kong BVERTRIE — &%

Charge for the year FAIE - 2,986
Overprovision in prior years BEEE 2 HRBERE (9) (20)

Current — Mainland China B EATE 38 — R B K e
Charge for the year FANFRIE 68,968 63,276
Deferred (note 28) IRIE (K15t 28) 6,952 113918
Total tax charge for the year FEBRIEZH 75,911 180,160

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the regions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

AR AT RERE DB A G M=
LR E LRI AR FE < L IBF
X BEERAERMEAE ZHIERH
HERMAT -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Profit before tax PR B A T 227,076 675459
Tax at the applicable rates BRAMEGFE 2 HIEA 59,391 169,458
Adjustments in respect of current tax of AR B 1E B 2 BNEARS 18
previous periods (9) (20)
Income not subject to tax AR Z WA (7,917) (2,690)
Expenses not deductible for tax DEIE -2 2,590 3,955
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on AEEZHEKBARZ
the distributable profit of the Group’s PRC AR S IR EIR % T E 2
subsidiaries Az 28 10,509 -
Tax losses not recognised RIERBIEE R 9,144 7,605
Others Hth 2,203 1,852
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAGSE BERBERTEZ
MESH 75,911 180,160
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13. Related Party Transactions 13. EREEALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BZEFUBERREMITMHATIMZ
these financial statements, the Group had the following RXH REBRFRNEE @E
material transactions with related parties during the year: ANTETZEARZNAT ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F = —+F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Bt FET FAET
Continuing transactions FER 5
Purchases of furniture and decoration mEEE A A B R &
services for counters and shops JE& 2 AR RS AR 7S
as well as different types of AR EEARA
moulds from related companies (i) 21,093 15,007
Rental expenses and utilities expenses AE R RIEI 2
for a property charged by e Rk AHEMERS
a related company (i) - 91
Rental expenses for a warehouse ARREZWRAREZ
charged by a director of the Company el (iii) 319 167
Consultancy fee to a controlling BENNEIEAE S
shareholder of the Company Y ZEEE (iv) 769 1,287

Notes: Htet -

0) The purchases of furniture and decoration services for (i) DRIEARRRAITEE L E S
counters and shops as well as different types of moulds FEAPTIEGINRE R RS B M
from Z B RS BEELT CRI) AR A & Duosiwei A BEE G ORI BRAF]
Metal & Plastic Products (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd) and &M NEMNZ BHFEEGHTIRE
% BHERIBE & T2 F R A A (Changzhou Duosiwei RABIARARBRITEEL
Furniture Decoration Construction Co, Ltd), related B2 AN IRE AT GIR) S
companies controlled by Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, an NRAFBHREE ORI BRA
executive director of the Company, and 3T B4 B 2 (5 A8 B AR MBS 2 R L R S
JI1) BBR A 7] (Xinsiwei Industry (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd), a 1 BR 7% LA R 5 48 Al 48 EL (2 B

related company controlled by close family members of
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, an executive director of the
Company, were made according to the terms similar to
those offered by the Group's independent suppliers. The
balances owed to related companies as at 31 December
2018 amounted to HK$6,470,000 (2017: HK$3,716,000)
and were unsecured, interest-free and repayable in
accordance with normal trading terms. The amounts
have been included in other payables and accruals as at
the end of the year.

(ii) In the prior year, the rental expenses and utllmes
expenses charged by BMNEHZ ERERA
(Changzhou Embry Development Limited), a related
company, which was controlled by Ms. Cheng Pik Ho
Liza, an executive director of the Company, and close
family members of Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Madam Ngok Ming Chu
and Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, two executive directors of the
Company, were determined with reference to the then
prevailing market conditions. The Group entered into a
new tenancy agreement with the related company
effective from 10 April 2016 subsequent to the
termination of the previous tenancy agreement on 31
May 2015. The tenancy agreement expired on 9 April
2017.

RNEEB AR AR 2 0
A - T — /¢+*H
=t+—AXNEEAR Z &%
64700008 T (ZF—+F :
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13. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(a)

(b)

13. BRAEALRS#®)

(continued) (@) (#&)

Notes: (continued) Wit - (&)

(iii) The rental expenses were charged by Madam Ngok (iii) HEREZ BRI ITES
Ming Chu, an executive director of the Company, and ERHKZ T W2 E E R
determined with reference to the then prevailing TREE °
market conditions.

(iv) Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a controlling shareholder of the (iv) AARERAR RS RTER
Company, had been serving as a consultant of the —E-NFE=ZA=-t+HHBE
Company since 25 March 2014. He had been engaged EARABER - g =T — N\
for the fifth term of one year effective from 25 March FZRA-+RHAEEREZE
2018 and ceased to be a consultant of the Company BARANGEBRAEH—F  WR
on 23 August 2018 upon appointment as an executive —E-N\FNA-+=BHEZ
director of the Company. The terms of the consultancy FARRBIHITESETBEE
fee were based on consultancy agreements entered EAR D FIEER o EAR B IER
into between the Group and Mr. Cheng Man Tai. IR B R AR REARAR

REGREEZEHOHEE
e

The above transactions constitute continuing BIEEFHTRBFELAEZ A EX

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the SHRKEEEERS  ABSE

Listing Rules and their details are disclosed in the report ENESFeRENREE -

of the directors.

The directors are of the opinion that the above EERE LN S ERNANERR

transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of B EIREA T o

business of the Group.

Compensation of key management (b) ZAEBFTEEIE AS ZHH

personnel of the Group

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEIT

Short term employee benefits RHESET 23,560 19,966

Post-employment benefits BRI 1218 A 219 240

Total compensation paid to INTEEERAEZ

key management personnel 4R 5 23,779 20,206

Further details of directors’ and chief executive's
remuneration are included in note 10 to the financial

statements.

BERITRARTHOFBIHL
B RS R MIFE10
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14. Dividends 14. RE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—F
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FAET
Dividends paid during the year £I5I7<J ENRE
Final in respect of the (ZE_T—+tF+=-A=+—H
financial year ended 31 December 2017 IEBA R R R AR B
— HK8.0 cents per ordinary share — BRE @R 8.0
(2017: Final and special in respect of the (Z2—tF HEZT—RF
financial year ended 31 December 2016 +Z A=+ —H LV RFERS
— HK4.3 cent, per ordinary share*) RE — DRl RERERR
43%10*) 33,793 17916
Interim — HK3.5 cents (2017: HK2.5 cents") fRERRR B — AR E AR 3.5 75
per ordinary share (ZZT—tF 1 258" 14,785 10,528
48,578 28,444
Proposed final dividend BIRARERE
Final — HK7.0 cents (2017: Final — HK8.0 cents) REIRR 8 — AT B
per ordinary share 708 (Z2—+5F : REKRE
— RERE®R80EIL) 29,569 33,793

FARK AR RBRFARBRRRLIE
ERFBEF ARG EIE - ZEMBRR
WA RIRER RIS

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. These financial statements do not
reflect the final dividend payable.

@ On 25 May 2017, the Company's shareholders approved at the % R-ZT—tFRA-+HHE ' ZRAN
annual general meeting a final dividend of HK4.3 cents per RENRERBFAG LBBABE—T
share payable in cash with a scrip dividend alternative (the —NFTZA=t+—RHIFERSIMN
“2016 Scrip Dividend Scheme”) for the year ended 31 KR HAIR BB AR 4378l - AT LARR
December 2016 (the “2016 Final Dividend”). During the year RE(TZZE—ARFURREE ] (=
ended 31 December 2017, 4,461,797 new shares were issued T RNERHRE] - BEZZT—F
by the Company at the average closing price of HK$3.058 per +—A=+—BLtFE AREIEEF

share, credited as fully paid, to shareholders of the Company
who had elected to receive scrip shares in lieu of cash under
the 2016 Scrip Dividend Scheme to settle HKS$ 13,645,000 of
the 2016 Final Dividend. The remainder of the 2016 Final
Dividend of HK$4,271,000 was satisfied by cash. Further details
of the 2016 Scrip Dividend Scheme are set out in the
Company's circular dated 13 June 2017.

On 23 August 2017, the Company’s board of directors declared
an interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share payable in cash
with a scrip dividend alternative (the “2017 Interim Scrip
Dividend Scheme”) for the six months ended 30 June 2017 (the
2017 Interim Dividend"). During the year ended 31 December
2017, 1,293,841 new shares were issued by the Company at
the average closing price of HK$2.536 per share, credited as
fully paid, to shareholders of the Company who had elected to
receive scrip shares in lieu of cash under the 2017 Interim Scrip
Dividend Scheme to settle HK$3,281,000 of the 2017 Interim
Dividend. The remainder of the 2017 Interim Dividend of
HK$7,247,000 was satisfied by cash. Further details of the 2017
Interim Scrip Dividend Scheme are set out in the Company's
circular dated 21 September 2017.

BT B S I 305878 TL 31T 4461,797
A& ABRZI AR FFTAR D T AR RIEZ —
%—ﬁi%%ﬁ%ﬁ%&%%muﬁ%
D RER LSRR  LMER =T —X
FRERRE Bmwm%me—: 7~
FERHAN B A% 427100078 T B 8IR
SR c AT — /NFURRBETE
HE— S EEI N AR R R AT
—tFERNAT=ZAREK °

R=_ZE—+FNA=-+=A " £AQ

4y ﬁ@i_? —+FRNA= +H¢
7~E B HEER & S MR AR B =A% 25
Bl UK E ([ =ZF—tFh
AR BETE D (=& — ti*%%
Eﬁoﬁﬁ:g—t¢+:ﬂz+—5
IHFE - ARRBR R ERER
253678 703171293841 BABRSI A4 2
RIS T AR RIR — T — G HIL
IR B ETBIEBUWHUAR BRI R BER
SHIRER - MEN—ZE—+FEHRHRE
32810008 7T « —E—tFHHR S
%@%mm%na@ﬂﬁimﬁ°ﬁ%
2 FHRIURREFEINE—F
%%ﬁﬂ%$@ﬂa%ﬁ:§—t¢h
A=—+—BH@EK
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15. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ownersof 15. ZAATEA AELESRER

the Company
(a) Basic (@ EXR
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: FRERZFTIRZATEUEE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Earnings &R
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, R ERIRERZEFZ
used in the basic earnings per share RAEHER ARG T
calculation 151,165 495,299
Number of shares
KRB EE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—tF
Shares [ 8vi)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5T & N B I% E 2R Z 7|
of the Company in issue, used in the PR 2 FAE 1T
basic earnings per share calculation T3 A N FE S £ 422,416,638 419,016,814
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREARZRF (BL) 35.79 118.21
(b) Diluted (b) #§
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in BHE_Z—LtFE_FT-\F+=
issue during the years ended 31 December 2018 and A=+—BHIEFE  FEELEE

2017. TRBEEEYE LB -
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Earnings Per Share Attributable to Owners of
the Company (continued)

(c)

Adjusted

As further disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements,
in the prior year, the Group recognised a gain on the
Relocation Arrangement of HK$449,980,000 and the
respective income tax expense of HK$112,495,000.
Management was of the view that the gain was non-
recurring and, in order to enable an investor to better
understand the Group’s result, it was meaningful to
present a reconciliation of adjusted basic earnings per
share based on profits attributable to owners of the
Company excluding the gain on the Relocation
Arrangement and the respective income tax expense.

15. XRBHEEABLEEBRERN (&)

BN RERM ORI E - R
FR AEEERARBLHEKE
449,980,000 7T X BB FT 1S R A X
112,495,000 7T - B ERBZW
mAELEERE - BEREERE
NETHIEBRASBNES WS
A4S AR AR B F IR MR R B Lt
Wzs R AR FTIS B X A QD R
ARG REFEL AR -

The calculation of adjusted basic earnings per share was PR AR B AN B TR A T 8
based on: HE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Earnings 27|
Profit attributable to owners of ZAYNEIE Z PN eyl
the Company 151,165 495,299
Adjustments for: FE
Gain on the Relocation Arrangement WEBZ P = - (449,980)
Income tax expense on the Relocation  #{iB L HEFT SR B X
Arrangement - 112,495
Adjusted earnings KRBT
Profit attributable to owners of the R GE L HE W s M AR RE FT 1S
Company excluding the gain on the A0 NNGIE Z =N
Relocation Arrangement and the FE R 5 A
respective income tax expense 151,165 157,814
Adjusted basic earnings per share WERRE B e AR PRS
excluding the gain on the Relocation W S IS FAEER
Arrangement and the respective ZF) GBAL)
income tax expense (HK cents) 35.79 37.66
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. X BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
landand  Leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  inprogress Total
Bl 2B
RETH HENE HER RHAE
REF #§ HE HfE HE HRIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEn Tér Fin FEr Tér Fin FEr
31 December 2018 —E-\ft-p=t-8
Cost: B
At1 January 2018 R=F-\5-F-A 868,807 3,690 103,682 255,876 14,888 278,146 1,525,089
Additions RE - - 2,142 41,808 355 184,188 228,473
Disposals/write-off HE i - - (1,553) (2,529) (2,066) - (6,148)
Transfers a5 159,502 - 106,941 17,898 - (284,341) -
Tranfertoinvestment properties  EEZRENE (#)

(note) (27,648) - - - - - (27,648)
Exchange realignment A (53,685) - (10,670) (16,038) (549) (11,251) (92,193)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\E+-F=1-H 946,976 3,690 200,542 297,015 12,608 166,742 1,621,573

Accurnulated depreciation: ZHHE:
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\5-F-A 116,087 3,690 61,342 170,531 11,061 - 362,711
Provided during the year ERkiE 21122 - 16,274 36,941 1,470 - 75,807
Disposals/write-off HE /i - - (1,496) (1,426) (1972) - (4,894)
Tranferto investment properties  EEZREME (#:)

(note) (4,089) - - - - - (4,089)
Exchange realignment 5% (6,694) - (4,054) (10,243) (441) - (21,432)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1+-H 126,426 3,690 72,066 195,803 10,118 - 408,103

Net book value: BEHE:
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-f=1-H 820,550 - 128,476 101,212 2,490 166,742 1,219,470
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

16. ¥% BERRHE#)

Fumniture,
Leasehold fixtures
[and and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor  Construction
buildings ~ improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
i %E
BELH HENZ BER RHFAZE
REF KB BE Bt Nt fRIR &
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKs000
T FiEr FEr T Fir FET T
31 December 2017 —2-tE+-B=+-H
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2017 R=E-tF-A-A 848,635 3690 103250 222848 15,065 191313 1,384.801
Additions RE - - 238 26,151 603 73242 100,234
Disposals/write-off HE /s (14,80) - (8237) (15982) (1,689) - (40,188)
Transfers & - - - 5010 - (5,010) -
Transfertoinvestment properties  BEFRENE (#:)

(note) (32930) - - - - - (32930)
Exchange realignment EAE 67382 - 8431 17849 909 18601 113172
At31 December 2017 RZE-tE+=A=1-A 868,807 3690 103682 255876 14888 278,146 1,525,089

Accurnulated depreciation: 2:E:
At T January 2017 RZE—tF-A-H 106,867 3690 56982 1447271 10322 - 322588
Provided during the year ERER 18,008 - 7502 30004 1,704 - 57,18
Disposals/write-off HE /i (12689) - (7.954) (15,500 (1,659) - (3779)
Transferto investment properties  BEZREME (#:)

(note) @217 - - - - - @217
Exchange realignment A 8118 = 4812 11300 690 - 24900
At 31 December 2017 RZE-—+E+-fA=1-A 116,087 3690 61,342 170531 11,061 - 362,711

Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+-f=1-H 752720 - 42340 85,345 3827 278,146 1,162,378

At 31 December 2017, the Group was still in the progress of
obtaining the building ownership certificates for certain
buildings in Mainland China with a net book value of
approximately HK$ 171,267,000 (the “Buildings”). As at 31
December 2018, the Group has obtained all the building
ownership certificates of the Buildings in Mainland China.

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group rented
out one of its occupied properties to an independent third
party for rental income. At the date of change in use, this
property became investment property. Upon the transfer from
property, plant and equipment to investment properties, this
property was revalued at HK$28,810,000 (2017: HK$35,349,000)
with a revaluation surplus of HK$5,251,000 (2017:
HK$6,636,000) credited to the asset revaluation reserve.

R-E—+F+-_A=+—H &K&EEH
9 7E 9% 38 H (7 52 o B K B AR A SRR W 3
WEE(TER)MEREZFE %%
Y3 KBRS E 49 171,267,00078 7T ° R
—?—A¢+—HZ+—E'$$EE
BFIEEEMARER -

it BE_FT—/\F+_A=+—HLHF
B AEERBYE=ZFHBEESRT
P A UCER & WA o R R A SR
TER ZEMERBEEME - B
ME BELKBEEEREZRENDE
B ZEMEEEG A 2881000087
(ZZ—+4F 1 35349,000/87C) * ME
& B #:5251,0008 T(Z T — £ F ¢
6,636,000/ 7T) st ABEE G fHEE o
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17. Investment Properties

BREYF

2018 2017

—E-N\F —2—+F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHET FAT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—R—RBZEREE 367,954 307,158

Changes in fair value (notes 6 and 9) NEEZE (Fat6%9) 9,000 4,000
Transfer from owner-occupied properties EREEE(hAME

(note 16) (Ktat16) 28,810 35,349

Exchange realignment [ 5 AR (18,125) 21,447

Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+—B=+—HZEEE 387,639 367,954

The Group's investment properties are situated at 6th Floor,

Wyler Centre I, 200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New

Territories, Hong Kong and certain floors of the building located
at No. 508, Kunming Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai City, the

PRC, and are held under medium term leases.

The Group's investment properties situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China were revalued on 31 December 2018 based on
valuations performed by Cushman & Wakefield Limited ("CWL"),
independent professionally qualified valuers. Valuations were
based on the capitalisation of net rental income derived from
the existing tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the properties, or where appropriate, with
reference to comparable market transactions and evidence and

consider adjustments to reflect differences in transaction
timing, location and tenure.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be

responsible for the external valuations of the Group's properties.

Selection criteria of an external valuer include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether

professional standards are maintained. Management discusses
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation technigue used
in prior years. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the

highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included

in note 31(a) to the financial statements.

REBZIEEMED BN BB RE
SBAEBEE 20050 B L 2 Bi61E R A
B EEmEHEERKSSEZNES
TEE - NEB 2R EWETIRES H
MEEE -

AEEZREMES IR EERTE
REMBIEXAERMGEMTHRER
TERRABR(RERITDEM - HETS
ENBRAEEOES WA FEERL
IQEJ&M%%@%WAW%% =
(MER)2EZALBROT ISR 5 M &
B UEERFHBUARRIZRE - 1 E
REHNZER -

D

BF AEEZREINEGHEMETEHAE
SB 2 WEEITINR R E o HNEHERD
WEEERBEMSME B8 BY
MEEREARFEREE - ERETF
E“ﬁﬁﬁk#ﬁﬁtﬁﬂF31_171Eﬂ55%5ﬂﬁ5ﬂ38m§ﬁ
1E1E{Ej*n&1éfﬁ HEITEER ©

FEEAZEETELEEE - PMEE
MEZAVEER  BEENFEZES
%1 J=5| $E/\EEH|J)EH iR e

REMENKLEHERTE=77 - H&
EE NIRRT FE31()
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Investment Properties (continued) 17. REWE (&)
Fair value hierarchy NEEEER
The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 31 NRZE—-—NFF+—_B=1+—HBHE=E
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were estimated by —+tF+_A=+—H8 ' AEEMNERK
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair value PRAIBRBA BB R 2 REMEZ R
measurements were categorised under Level 3. FTEERATEEFEDERFE=HRIE
T o
Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within RAFEBEERF=ZFALFE2RAFE
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BT =R
Hong Mainland
Kong China
L REI AR
HKS000 HKS'000
FET T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—A—BZERHE 68,000 239,158
Changes in fair value recognised in E(\HSZ/\%WEEEEZ
the income statement NEEEE 4,000 -
Transfer from owner-occupied properties (note 16) &1 B %+ (5 R (15 16) - 35,349
Exchange realignment [ 5, A& - 21,447
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F+ZA=+—8BK
at 1 January 2018 E-N\F-R—BZKHE 72,000 295,954
Changes in fair value recognised in EAMZ SR AR
the income statement REEEZD 9,000 -
Transfer from owner-occupied properties (note 16) & | % = BWE (K15 16) - 28,810
Exchange realignment B % - (18,125)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 R-E—N\FE+=-F=+—H
ZEREE 81,000 306,639

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

FA -

t5F ) o

—REFE R zEREEBR
FEEE TEEAZ=LHBFE=
RBEH(ZF—
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17.

Investment Properties (continued) 17. REWE (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEESEHKE)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the NTAREMEGECRAGERERE

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: ERABBIHNE

Significant Range of unobservable
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs inputs
L/ EZ Vil fRES % EXRFABERARIE TAIBERARBEE
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F

Hong Kong Market comparable Gross unit rate HK$3,000- HK$2,700-
— Commercial properties method per square foot HK$3,100 HK$2,800
— Level 3 (note )

B M5 EUA BYRREEMEE  3,00087T- 270087
—RERYE (Htati) 3,100 7T 2,80078 7T
—F=R

Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 4%-5% 4%-5%
— Commercial properties approach per annum (note i)

— Level 3

SlETPN S WABAEIE BFEENMEE (i) 4%-5% 4%-5%
— R
—FB=&

Notes: Wit -

The higher the gross unit rate per square foot, the higher the i BrYIRESEMEESS A TFEY
fair value. = e
i, The higher the capitalisation rate per annum, the lower the fair i BFENMEEYR - AFERE -

value.
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18. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 18. FEF LA ERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F =+
HKs’000 HKS000
FHET FET
Cost: B
At 1 January w—HA—H 47,889 40,013
Additions NE - 6,025
Disposals k== - (1,680)
Exchange realignment PE i A% (2,722) 3,531
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—8H 45,167 47889
Amortisation: ey
At 1 January R—A—H 6,336 5,140
Recognised during the year FAER 777 988
Disposals He - (252)
Exchange realignment B o =R (405) 460
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 6,908 6,336
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+=—A=+—RAZEHE 38,259 41,553
Current portion included in prepayments, HAFENTIE - 12e REMELK
deposits and other receivables (note 22) FRIE 2 BVERER 1 (Mt 22) (933) (989)

Non-current portion FERNERER 1 37,326 40,564
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19.

Other Asset

In accordance with the requirements of the Shenzhen City's
urban development plan issued by Shenzhen City Luohu
District Town Re-development Bureau (3|7 78 48 [ 35 T &
¥1/), on 23 October 2017, Embry (China) Garments Ltd.
(“Embry SZ"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a relocation compensation agreement and a
supplemental relocation compensation agreement (collectively
known as the “Relocation Compensation Agreement”) with
Shenzhen Huiren Jewelry City Investment Limited (31| 21
CHRERIREFR A F]), acompany established in the PRC
and an independent third party developer (the “Developer”) in
order to implement a renewal plan by demolishing and
rebuilding in the Buxin Industrial Area, Shenzhen, the PRC. The
details of the Relocation Compensation Agreement are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 25 October 2017.
According to the Relocation Compensation Agreement, Embry
SZ shall surrender its land use right and its properties situated
in the Buxin Industrial Area (the “Original Properties”). The
Developer, in return, agreed to (i) compensate Embry SZ new
properties in a form of new industrial research and
development buildings (¥ EZE R MW NE REEER )
on a piece of industrial purposed land with an area similar to
that of the Original Properties, to be developed and built by the
Developer (the “New Properties”; (i) compensate Embry SZ the
cost of land use right of the Original Properties, rental cost for
Embry SZ to lease properties during the move out period and
other costs related to the Relocation Arrangement (“Cash
Compensation”), which are repayable from the Developer
within 5 years; and (iii) sell extra properties at a new building to
be constructed in the Buxin Industrial Area, Shenzhen, the PRC
(“New Building") to Embry SZ, whereby the price and area of
such properties at the New Building shall be subject to further
negotiation between Embry SZ and the Developer (collectively
known as the “Relocation Arrangement”).

Embry SZ has moved out from the Original Properties in the
prior year and signed the properties transfer confirmation (&=
EBZHERE) with the Developer on 30 November 2017.

19.

HttEE

MRIR RN i 28 0 [ 3 T S /B AR A A R
YMBHERRENRTE  R_F—t
FTAZT=B " ©#¥5 (FEB)REKE
[RAR(ZFFTRY] > KRB E2EN
BR) BRIIMEBCHRERREERA
A (—FARPEKZH AR RBLE=T
HEE((ERAD)TLREBMEDHZ
9 78 B B ek (AR 78 [ B8 f (B 1
&) ABEBRHBRIID O TREF
RERERAERERZAE - WEMED
BABEHRNARFTERA-Z—tF+
AZ+TREBAMH - RIFREMHE W
& RRFRYIBROEMLRAOTE
BERME(TERME]) EE LT HER
o BRI R E () E = F TR
RIBEUR YD S PR e T M A% iR 3
RAERRIEENHEEXTER S
REEBERFVE(HVED : ()HE
ZHRFTRYRYELHERERAE - &2
T ARINNERHREEMROEEK
7R N B BB 19 ) EL A AR AR (3R & 4
Bl SELEARNAFAHBEREESR
Ko (i) A 22 %0 35 R Y1 & R BUR Ym0 T
XeFET(HETDORIME &
o FEFcZEDER ERREER
fFeFT R BB RAE—PERRT
AEE (B RHE]D) °

]

ZRFTRNEREFANEBRRYE - X
RIEBE—+F+—-A=1THEERBR
AIEERRMERE -
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Other Asset (continued) 19. EMEE#)
To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the BAARESREE —EEEARITE
Company's directors, having made all reasonable enquiry, the H-2BNEE AEBEBBHRERR
Group does not expect any obstacles to receive the New WEGHT 1 % R 3R @ f BT & IR EfIE
Properties and the Cash Compensation from the Developer. B-BHE_Z—tF+-_A=+—HL
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group FE  AKRBRIERME - BERK
derecognised the property, plant and equipment and prepaid B R EAEE N REREE S 51,973,000
lease payments with carrying amounts of HK$ 1,973,000 and 78 7T 121,428,000/ 7T » RIRIR B E 17
HK$ 1,428,000, respectively. According to the terms of the ZNEEBREREGR  EREgER
Relocation Compensation Agreement and the properties TR BEEAERGER) FIBNEE
transfer confirmation, the Group recognised the fair value of the W ANEEERIE T Y E A EF
right to receive the New Properties (“Other Asset”) of (TEMEE B R FE416,744,0008 7T
HK$416,744,000, based on the valuation report issued by CWL, 38 4 %818 50,780,000 7 7T M A8 B % 7B B
independent professionally qualified valuers, as “Other Asset” ¥ 14,143,000 7T ALt - BARBLHE
and the Cash Compensation of HK$50,780,000 net off with Y U 25 449,980,000 78 7T M 48 B8 BT 15 i
respective relocation expenses of HK$14,143,000. Accordingly, a ¥ 1124950008 TR EZEZ T —t &
gain in relation to the Relocation Arrangement of TZA=T—BILEFEHGFERRTARE
HK$449,980,000 and the respective income tax expense of Ro HEEFARS L HE NS TE NS
HK$112,495,000 were recognised in the consolidated income A BRESFEHRER HEMEE
statement during the year ended 31 December 2017. The (BB BZ Y & R ERWEAK
valuation was dependent on certain significant inputs that B)FRE N ERER - EBIEK AR
involve judgements, including gross unit rate per square meter. TEARR °
Other Asset, being the consideration received upon disposal of
the Original Properties under the Relocation Arrangement, is
initially recognised at its fair value and subsequently carries at
cost less impairment.
At 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of Other Asset and RZE—NE+_-_A=+—8 H&
receivables in relation to Cash Compensation under the ENEBARELTHENR S/ EFEIFIA
Relocation Arrangement were approximately HK$407,273,000 BREIE S Bl % 407,273,000 L ( —ZE—+
(2017: HKS431,807,000) and HK$37,798,000 (2017: F 1 431,807,00078 7T ) & 37,798,0007% JT
HK$47,921,000) (note 22), respectively. (ZF —+ 4 : 479210005 7T ) (B 5%
22) °
Inventories 20. B8
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHT FH&T
Raw materials R R 147,984 91,953
Work in progress R 72,703 51,812
Finished goods 2IRK 555,680 511,688
776,367 655453
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21.

Trade Receivables

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for wholesalers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The credit period is generally for a period of
one month, extending up to three months for major customers.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables by the sales department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

PR E Z AR X

AEBETRUEERFAERSETE
B REERLEBALNR - E
EH-—RR—ER XTERFZEEH
QA= =fA A - AEE 2 HE BEE
AWz RUHIE - OREEERE - B
HESRBHSREEEERRS - EX L
P R AR B 2 B 5 IR F08 R %
TEZEFPEHAEPARRS S
EREBEST ZAR - NEEWEHE
W E 5 RS A T B AR A
S EINRIE e - UE 5k AR L 5T

H o
15N

AEERBEHEEER 2RKE SR
FREBRZAR 2 REDITOT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Within 90 days 0HEA 71,389 106,096
91 to 180 days 91%&180H 3,851 6,109
181 to 360 days 1812360 H 8,359 3,259
Over 360 days 360 HEA E 2,083 1,559
85,682 117,023
Less: Impairment allowance L ORER (10,442) (4,818)
75,240 112,205

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade FEWE SRR BIEBEEE T :

receivables are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
At 1 January n—HA—H 4,818 2,034
Impairment losses recognised, net (note 9) WERIEER - FR (M) 5,624 2,784
At 31 December R+—_A=1+—H 10,442 4818
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21. Trade Receivables (continued) 21. EWEZERR#E)
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 BE-—E2—-N\HF+=-H=+—81L
December 2018 FERBEEBMBRELEDE IR
e
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date RERE QBB R EEEETRESD
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The o LErEEHEEEE BEXRE
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of REEHEUEBERERANZEAZ RS HEA
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e, by BICENHBIR [R5 o R P A A ) @y m HY R &
geographical region and customer type). The calculation BE o TERMSIARMESR - &
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of MEEEENREBH I ENAEBATSE
money and reasonable and supportable information that is I8~ B AR HE R R RIS ETE RS
available at the reporting date about past events, current BRAEELR -
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure LTEYEEAEREINE SERFER
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: BiEgEENEEREER
As at 31 December 2018 HR-s—NE+=-B=+—H
Past due
am
Within 91to 181to Over
90days 180days 360days 360 days Total
91E 181 jihic]
90 KA 180X 360X 360K st
Expected credit loss rate TBHEEEEX 0.44%  10.91%  91.18%  100.00%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BREZ{E (T T) 71,389 3,851 8,359 2,083 85,682
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) ~ TAEA{E & 548 (F&T) 317 420 7,622 2,083 10,442
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 BE-E—+tH&+=-H=+—HL
December 2017 FERBEEBISTEREIRR
At 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$4,818,000 were E:g_,‘:¢+: B=4+—8 &&
individually determined to be impaired. The impairment was EREEEFIARENERE SES A
measured based on incurred credit losses under HKAS 39. The 481800078 7T A IIRIER B &
individually impaired trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 B|E 30 ItBEAN=EEEIS - @
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and only R J5 B FE U BB 5 B =k R I8 B S IR B
a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. ZEHR - FEEIR allk @ 265 FEUBE L o
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December BlEAR-—_E—+E+-_BF=+—8F
2017 that were not considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 is e RS9 ME Y EWE SE
as follows: FEEWMHOTT -
2017
—F—tF
HKS$'000
FET
Neither past due nor impaired AT ARE 106,096
1 to 3 months past due B EAZE3EA 6,109

112,205

147



148

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED % #j %7 ¥ Bt fi R 24 5] / ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S i o MY A (7))

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+-A=+—8

21.

22,

Trade Receivables (continued) 21. EREZRIE)
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 BE-Z—+tF+=ZB=+—HL
December 2017 (continued) FERBERBSTERE39HRR
=NE
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired ﬂi?@ﬁﬁ MMARRE ERE FERFR T E R
related to a large number of diversified customers for whom SV EENLHZZZERPEM -
there was no recent history of default.
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related EEBERRECREKE ZRHKTIES
to a number of independent customers that had a good track FRAEBRFRIEECHEIBIYLE
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors FEME BENTELR AN EEEE
of the Company were of the opinion that no provision for WENIRERNEE  BHEBERNESR
impairment under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these AR EgWD KRR EEREHAR
balances as there had not been a significant change in credit ZEREBRIBRBED BT ERISE 39571E D
quality and the balances were still considered fully recoverable. TE R o
Prepayments, Deposits and Other 22, FERRIE - BEeRHMERRK
Receivables
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Prepaid land lease payments (note 18) Ta i - AR & FRIE (A3 18) 933 989
Deposit paid and related direct cost e LR (s A B A
for the land use right in Shandong RekiHEEEER 9,266 12,361
Deposits for acquisition of items of WEEME - B MR HIE R
property, plant and equipment B &S 934 23,663
Prepayments T RIE 30,549 29,969
Receivables in relation to Cash Compensation AERELTHNIE S @HE
under the Relocation Arrangement (note 19)  FEURERIE (f13F19) 37,798 47,921
Deposits and other receivables "& RH A0 EUWRIE 55,577 37,079
135,057 151,982
Current portion included in prepayments, STATERNFIE - e REM
deposits and other receivables FEW TR IE 2 BNERER 1) (95,911) (75,883)
Non-current portion FERNERZB 10 39,066 76,099
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Prepayments, Deposits and Other 22, AR RERHEMEWRFIEA
Receivables (continued) (&)
Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits ReMEMEWFEETERRRELH
and receivables in relation to Cash Compensation under the THSHEEANHEIRE REKE
Relocation Arrangement. Where applicable, an impairment HefemAmERLT  BAZEEEAN
analysis is performed at each reporting date by considering the HIZ AR AT ARIREARER - £
probability of default of comparable companies with published FEFRE BETREDNT o IR L
credit ratings. In the situation where no comparable companies AMEBERIENAILL AR BjELE
with credit ratings can be identified, expected credit losses are REEMF P I8 KD 8RR A E B R A(G
estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to STTEHEAEL - ARBEEAXRUAWIBER
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted B R A 5N T R 2R AR AR S B TRORY o
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future RZE—N\F+_A=+—H K&
economic conditions, as appropriate. As at 31 December 2018, HErZEEARNEBEEXRREB Y EZ
the Group estimated the loss rate of these balances was SEBIELRE -
minimal and no impairment provision in respect of these
balances was made.
None of the financial assets included in the above balances is ruiEsmm e EERER R E -
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the SPA LSRN SREEAROREHE
above balances relate to receivables for which there was no R FEUR FRIE o
recent history of default.
Cash and Cash Equivalents 23. REeERAEEEY
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Cash and bank balances H& RIRTTA R 146,947 234,711
Non-pledged time deposits with original REARRIAE ALK =[EA
maturity of less than three months Z IR E BATE
when acquired 11,467 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRESZEEY 158,414 234,711

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted to
HK$132,729,000 (2017: HK$184,922,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies; however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

AEERBEHELEEBUAAREE
IR & MIRITHE 84275 132,729,00078 7T (—
T — 4 1 184922,000/87T) - ARIER
A EREBAHMER  HRESD
KBE 2 SNE B FRAKT) - LA R AEEE - B
RSEEERT  ~AEBEEEBER
EETINER SEB ZRITHEARK K
BMAEHMER -
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23. Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are normally made

for varying periods of between approximately one day and
three months on average depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

24. Trade Payables

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables as at the end

23. BERREEZEY#H)

RITERREFARITER

AFNREEZ

FEFIR L - BT RA N Y

RPLH—BE=E@ERTE -
FRME > WIREM 2B

LEE

REREE

EHIERA R R o RITERF NI
HA RSB A9 RCER 2 (F B RAFARTT ©

24. ENEZER

$$@EA$E¢HHFTD#EIZTHT£%EE

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FRBEZAHZRESTAT

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET T
Within 90 days 90BN 105,274 48,881
91 to 180 days 912180 H 15,115 4,377
181 to 360 days 1812360 H 2,462 765
Over 360 days 360 HEA £ 2,191 1977
125,042 56,000

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ERE SRR TEE - —MRR30E0

settled on 30 to 90 days terms.

B A4 El/ﬁ"
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25. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 25. FTERITER
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E+F
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
ERAIE BB A=
(%) HEA TER (%) gk = FHT
Current bt Hong Kong
Interbank
Offered Rate
("HIBOR")+1.80
Bankloans RITER BRI On demand
— unsecured — B B¥FE+1.80 REREE 88,281 - - -
HIBOR+1.85 to HIBOR
HIBOR+2.00 +185 toHIBOR+2.00
BEARTRAERE BBRTRERE
Bankloans RITER +.85ZFBRT 2019 +185 ERBRAT 2018
— unsecured — B A8 42,00 “B-NE 125,778 FIEHRE+200 —E-N\&§ 136,778
214,059 136,778
HIBOR+1.85 to HIBOR+185to
HIBOR+1.95 HIBOR +195
Non-current FENE BARBTEERR 2020-2022 BBRTRERE 2019-2021
Bank loans RITER +185EFBRT —BCEEER 18 EREST —ET-NEER
— unsecured — B REHFE+1.95 b e -3 213,000 FIERE+195 —F-- 189,278

427,059 326,056
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25. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings (continued) 25. FHE|RITERE)

2018 2017
—®-N\E  —T %
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Analysed into: D
Bank loans repayable: RTSIERER ZRITER
Within one year or on demand —FRYIEEREE 214,059 136,778
In the second year FF 102,000 81,278
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EZENF(REEEFE) 111,000 108,000
427,059 326,056
Less: Amount repayable within one year or B R—ERERIIRERER
on demand and classified as current portion ﬂﬁ”i%ﬁﬂﬁﬁa‘ﬁn ] (214,059) (136,778)
Amount classified as non-current portion S RIEREE £ FR 213,000 189,278
The above bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars EFHIRITEFRAB T ELIEEBIRT

H%ﬁ%@ﬂ?bu SOEZE200EETE (=

and bear interest at rates ranging from 1.80% to 2.00% above

the HIBOR per annum (2017: 1.85% to 2.00% above the HIBOR
per annum).

At 31 December 2018, the Group's term loans in the amount of
HK$88,281,000 (2017: Nil) containing an on-demand clause
have been classified as current liabilities. For purpose of the
above analysis, the loans are included within current interest-
bearing bank borrowings and analysed into bank loans
repayable on demand. Based on the maturity terms of the
loans, the amounts repayable in respect of the Group's loans
are: HK$ 156,247,000 (2017: HKS136,778,000) payable within one
year; HK$ 143,406,000 (2017: HK$81,278,000) payable in the
second year; and HK$127,406,000 (2017: HKS$108,000,000)
payable in the third to fifth years, inclusive.

T—+F REBBITRERSENE
M85 EE200EHE

RZF—-—NF+-A=+—8 " ££E
HESE RS 5882810008 L (- =
—tF ) EhPESBEEREERKNK
"*ﬁﬁ/ﬁibiéf o b AMTIE -
KETAB B BIRITER YA
%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ% X o IRIEBEERWE
IR BASEEREENKES:
— N FER 156,247,000 7T ( ZF—+4F -
136,778,000/ 7T ) + 88 —4F FE1< 143,406,000
BT (20174 £ 81,278,000/ 7) + RE=
E2ERF(BREEREME) BT 127,406,000
HIT(ZZ—+4F : 108,000,000 7T ) °
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26. Other Payables and Accruals 26. HMEMRERETTRIE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

Notes HK$’000 HKS'000

B =E FHT FBTT

Other payables H b EFIE @) 66,933 97311

Accruals FEStIRIR 118,449 134,499

Deferred revenue WA (b) - 77,460

Receipt in advance B IR (b) - 13,294

Contract liabilities aBHEE (b) 42,875 =

228,257 322,564

Notes: ffzE -

@) The amounts of HK$6,470,000 (2017: HK$3,716,000) included in €) REBREMEMNRIBEMEEN

other payables of the Group were due to related companies as
at 31 December 2018. These balances were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable in accordance with normal trading
terms (note 13(a)(i)).

Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of
the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The
Group expects the transaction price allocated to the
unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognised as
revenue when the Group transfers goods to the customer. As
at 31 December 2017, the amounts of HK$77,460,000 and
HK$ 13,294,000 included in other payables and accruals of the
Group were related to deferred revenue arising from the
loyalty points VIP programme and receipt in advance from
customers, respectively. Such amounts were reclassified as
contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the contract liabilities included
deferred revenue arising from the loyalty points VIP
programme of the Group and short-term advances received
from customers for the sale of goods. The decrease in contract
liabilities in 2018 was mainly due to the decrease in short-term
advances received from customers for the sale of goods and
deferred revenue arising from the loyalty points VIP
programme of the Group. The details were set out in note 2.2
to the financial statements.

6,470,000 7T (= ZF — 4 : 3,716,000
BIL)AR_E—N\F+_A=+—
BEMBEEQARZHIE - ZSHEHA
| RENFTERE-—REEBRNE
2 (M 13@)3) °

HiEN TR/ TEE

EHBBEBEERESRRSIEERT
REBHETNXZERERE NEH
FEHIEERATRELN - EANRS
BRENASEARTAFEEE RERE
RAakF - R_E—+F+=A
=t+—8 AEEREMEMRER
JEETFUIBFT R IR 77,460,000 8 TT A8
RARE R BT 8] 2 FRIE & 13,294,000 75
ThAEkKZE - RZE—N\E+=A
=+t—HB AHAEBERATFPH
$HE B AT ER A A2 B TR UK BR 3k R AR
SEBEREHETEEELNRE
WA - ZeER-_E—N\E—H—H
BN EAANEE-

RZE—NF+_A=+—H" &%
BEREASERTOHES 85T

EEREERGEANREERmAE
FPWEBEEHRER - —E—\FE54
BERSIZRANTPHASERE
ERHEGEHEELNERBER
3 FE WO P BE A O TR WRR BORL A B
B HBEENMHEREAME22
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27. Deferred Liabilities 27. BEELEAE
Deferred liabilities represent the estimated provision in respect BELaEEasRsfilEsERasElE
of long service payments which may become payable in the MR E & 2 (et B - REARTS € 7 B
future under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance to AREESEBIEIIREENAEE Y
employees in proportion to their periods of services with the FEMEEE T -

Group up to the end of the reporting period.

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHET FET

At 1 January Rn—H—H 189 1,889
Provision/(write-back of provision) for FEZEE

the year (note 9) (Befem) (Mt o) 2,221 (1,700)

Payments during the year FEZMNR (165) =

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 2,245 189
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28. Deferred Tax

28. EIEBIIR
EREERIERERAESHNT

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

Temporary Withholding
difference taxes on
arising from undistributed ~ Temporary  Withholding
the  Unrealised profitson  difference of taxes on Deferred
Revaluation ~ Relocation profit of PRC provisions interest subsidy
of properties ~ Arrangement inventories  subsidiaries  and accruals income income Others Total
HENEAR BER
REZHEL AR RREA HEN V0N ifid
B ZERER  HEER ZENE  2ENER ZEAR REMA At @zt
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TAT AT TAT AT TA TAT A TAT FAT
At1 January 2017 RIB—t%
-A-A 4027 - (39667) 30640 (39527) 319 (5616) 17% (48028)
Deferred taxdebited toequity ~ FREERRZ
during the year BB 1659 = - = - - = = 1659
Deferred tax charged/(credited) ~ FRERERNB/
tothe income statement () ZERHE
during the year (note 12) (i) - 115809 5339 - 623) 659 140 (1,79) 113918
Payments during the year ERZH - - - (2907) - 66 = = (3569)
Exchange realgnment Ejiag ) 4186 B15) 278 B612 7 ) - (14)
At31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=t-H 6,086 119,995 (37,480) 30211 (49,372) 343 (5,945) - 63,838
fectofadoption of HKFRS 15 SEANE BB RE8
(note22) B155 2B
(Hiit22) - - - - 1,026 - - - 1,026
At 1 January 2018 (restated) R=Z-\¥-A-R
(&5%) 6,086 119,995 (37,480) 3021 (48,346) w (5,945) - 64,864
Deferred taxdebited toequiy  EREREENB 2
during the year EREHE 1313 - - - - - - - 1313
Deferred tax charged/[credited) ~ FREUREZNR/
tothe income statement (B%) ZBIEHE
during the year (note 12 (Hit12) - (2,448) (11,007) 10,509 9,141 703 14 - 6952
Payments during the year ERRH - - - - - (680) - - (680)
Exchange edignment BN (405) (6,707) 263 (2,194) 233 1) 5 - (4,030)
At31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+-A=t-H 6,994 110,840 (45,943) 38,526 (36,874) 345 (5,469) - 68,419
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28.

Deferred Tax (continued)
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

28. RIERHIE (&)

VAN 7R 6% B B 75
IRAEERDMT

RS QIBEER

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
HKs’000 HKS$'000
FET T#ET
Deferred tax assets recognised in the WirE I RIR R RERZ

consolidated statement of financial position Z‘RIEQF (88,286) (92,797)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the iR E B RIR N R HER 2 IR
consolidated statement of financial position MIEBEE 156,705 156,635
68,419 63,838

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$320,893,000 (2017: HK$265,973,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax
losses arising in Macau of HK$2,747,000 (2017: HK$8,712,000)
that will expire in three years for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in the Company and
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%. In
estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected to be
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors
have made assessment based on the factors which included
dividend policy and the level of capital and working capital
required for the Group's operation in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate withholding tax amount
arising from the temporary differences associated with these
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$29,147,000 (2017: HKS$46,479,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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29. Share Capital 29. BAX
2018 2017
—E-N\F =+
HK$’000 HKS000
FEXT FAET
Authorised: JETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 A%
HK$0.01 each FREE01 B TR B 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER
422,416,638 (2017:422,416,638) 422,416,638 % (Z T —t4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 422416638 %) B EE
0.01 BITH AR 4,224 4,224

The movements in the authorised and issued share capital of

ARRREREAE RE BTRAR

the Company during the year were as follows: LN
Number of Number of Share
authorised issued Issued premium
shares shares capital account Total
BRfT
EERGEE RGgE RE  ROBER @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tir Tir TiEr
Asat 1 January 2017 RZE—t5-A—-H 1,000000000 416,661,000 4,166 369,644 373810
Shares issued in lieu of cash RERSREMETLZ
dividend (note 14) WRtp (Hrzt 14) - 5,755,638 58 16,868 16,926
At 31 December 2017, RZE—tF
1 January 2018 and 31 December +-A=+-8"
2018 “T-\$-A-BR
“E-\FtZA=1—H 1,000,000,000 422,416,638 4,224 386,512 390,736
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30.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents (i) the excess
of the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation of certain members of the
Group which took place on 31 December 1992, over the
nominal value of issued shares of Embry Group Limited (“EGL")
in exchange therefor; (i) the premium arising from the shares
issued by EGL for settlement of the amount due to the ultimate
holding company of HK$15,841,000; (iii) the premium arising
from the acquisition of Embry (H.K) Limited (“Embry HK") from
the non-controlling interests of HK$5,000,000; and (iv) the
excess of the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation,
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor and the then existing 10,000,000
shares of HK$S0.01 each credited as fully paid at par.

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in the
PRC, subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are
required to transfer a certain percentage of their profits after
tax, if any, to the enterprise expansion and statutory reserve
funds, which are non-distributable, before profit distributions to
shareholders. The amounts of the transfers are subject to the
approval of the board of directors of these subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS 3 which
permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred prior
to 1 January 2001, to remain eliminated against the
consolidated reserves. The amount of goodwill remaining in
consolidated reserves, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, was stated at cost, which
amounted to HK$3,168,000 (2017: HKS3,168,000) as at 31
December 2018.

30.

(N
AR EBEFEASERBSEURAE
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AEBEHBBEBEORBEEAR
—hh—FE+-A=+—BKELER
ETKERR  ZEKBARKRMME
BB BL UL 1E R R HR PTEE 1T Embry Group
Limited ([EGL]) IRfP WU EI{E Z 8 : (il) EGL
LB B RS B 4R RR 72 B) 5K T8 15,841,000
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Operating Lease Arrangements

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years
(2017: one to six years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due

31.

REHEORH
(a) fFREBEA

REBERBEEEOTHHER
BEWMEME17)  MAOANTF—
ERFFHETER(ZZ—+
F:—FFH) -

RS REERE  BEAEE
HBEPFIMY 2 MR MEL LM
#)o REBRIATHBZ REK&K

as follows: REWHESHEBENT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 16,971 17,843
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZENF(BIEEEME) 20,844 17,591
37,815 35434

In addition, the operating lease rentals for the use of
certain floor areas of the Group’s building located in
Shanghai are contingent based on sales of the shops
pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out in the
respective agreements. As the future sales of these
shops could not be accurately determined, the relevant
contingent rent has not been included above.

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its shops, counters,
warehouses and office properties under operating lease
arrangements with leases negotiated for terms mainly
ranging from one to ten years (2017: one to ten years).

(b)

SN - ERASEMR LB 2B
FZETEMEEMEK 0
reEVEe/IAES - IR
15 Rt o P B 2 IR R R R 1 4%
EHZHERERE  c ARN%EFR
MZARRHEBRREERBE
o RARIAEHEYRERE
Ex-

EREEA
AEERBEEMOLEASE
TIEM - 1B BERBAE
¥ HAOTEU—ETFFHE
TER(ZE—tF: —E+F
H) o
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31. Operating Lease Arrangements (continued) 31. REHENZH @)
(b) Aslessee (continued) (b) EREMBEAE)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total R EHEERE - BEBEASE
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable ZRAHGEHEERLY  RERR
operating leases falling due as follows: UTHEBHZzZARKEENHE 2
BT

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FEIT

Within one year —F R 135,302 114,446

In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFELF(BREEEME) 101,127 89,289

After five years hF% 5,197 4336

241,626 208,071
In addition, the Group has entered into agreements o REEEBERRIFI M1
with department stores to enable the Group to set up #FUEAEEREBEEARIARA
its retail outlets therein. The operating lease rentals for REEH FHAEERARZER
the use of their floor areas in department stores are HEmMEN 2 E&EHBOME2 TR
based on the higher of a fixed rental or contingent rent BFEETHESIABEMERZ
based on sales of the retail outlets pursuant to the terms EeS&EBET AT IIRESR
and conditions as set out in the respective agreements. BiEE 2 R RIEERTE
As the future sales of these retail outlets could not be BCHERET HR&EZFZTE
accurately determined, the relevant contingent rent has B RIREERE R EEE
not been included above and only the minimum lease EMBBEAEERBEE

commitments have been included in the above table. bR o PREHI|FEMBERRE -

32. Commitments 32, &iE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

RBEREEER - NEBZAZWNT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FEIT
Contracted for commitments in respect of BEYE BEEREZ
the acquisition of property, BRI AU
plant and equipment 201,516 262,425
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33. Contingent Liabilities 33. HARAEE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RI|EHAR - BIERER P I E IR B AE
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: ZHABEOT -
2018 2017
—BE-N\E —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET TF#T
Bank guarantees given in lieu of property BREMELEZR S R AHEEIE
rental deposits and utility deposits REMREZRITER 679 243
34. Notetothe Consolidated Statementof Cash  34. REHRETRMEBRME

Flows
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities BERDEENEBEZ L

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings

FHRIRITIER

HKS'000

T

At 1 January 2017 R_ZT—tF—H—H 354,833

Changes from financing cash flows BERESME (38,081)

Interest expense FERAX 9,304
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R-EBE—+F+-_A=+—8xXK

—F-/\%—-A—H 326,056

Changes from financing cash flows BMERSREH 88,115

Interest expense FBERAX 12,888

At 31 December 2018 RZE—\F+-_HA=+—H 427,059
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35. Financial Instruments by Category 35. Bz?ﬁ/”:'] PMMZER T A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial A EHRAE RS ESR T AEMER
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: TEZZDT
Financial assets THRMEE
Financial
assets at
amortised Loans and
cost receivables
under under
HKFRS 9 HKAS 39
RIZEEHE
M HE BRIBEEE
ZRIZE9N 4R
128 8 AR A F399R 2
E"’%Z E \T)\&
SREE e U kT
2018 201 7
—E-N\E —tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Trade receivables FEWE B EETR 75,240 112,205
Financial assets included in prepayments, PIATENRIE - ek
deposits and other receivables B WA, o B E 42,597 53,031
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMReEEY 158,414 234,711
276,251 399,947
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost under cost under
HKFRS 9 HKAS 39
RIEEHE
Bg®mE FEgER
ZRIE 95 395K
BEHEKA  REEKA
FEz FEZ
SHas TRAE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T EIRITER 427,059 326,056
Trade payables ERE S RNR 125,042 56,000
Financial liabilities included in other EBEEREMENRIE R
payables and accruals EEtREzeHAE 104,303 196,175
656,404 578,231
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments, comprise cash,
short term deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value
and cash flow interest rate risks. The Group's exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

At present, the Group does not intend to hedge its exposure to
interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly
review the economic situation and its interest rate risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in future as
may be necessary.

At 31 December 2018, the profit before tax of the Group would
have been decreased/increased by approximately HK$2,135,000
(2017: HKS1,630,000) if the interest rate had been increased/
decreased by 50 basis points with all other variables held
constant.

36.

M EREEE
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and 36. MIKRAREEBEERBE®)
Policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk S EEE [ i
The Group carries on its sales and purchases transactions mainly REBFEUBTIARBETEER
in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group does not use 5o REBWENAITE ST B REH
derivative financial instruments to protect against the volatility HEEKBREZINERGREMESRE
associated with foreign currency transactions and other ENBEFHAZEE - AT AIRA
financial assets and liabilities created in the ordinary course of EFMFNABITEY  HAREHE
business. However, as the Group's net profit is reported in Hong A] A AR PE 5 U0 - RZ IR - REE K
Kong dollars, there will be a translation gain as a result of the ERD 4 S A E M A B ARE - 37 LA A
RMB appreciation, and vice versa. The majority of the Group's R¥5|7R o
operating assets are located in Mainland China and are
denominated in RMB.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRINTHRBERREEER - EEE
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the A ERREFTIENBERT » A%
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of MBS AREERA e HIE S8
the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of PP oHRE(HREKEERABNR
monetary assets and liabilities). FEEY) -
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in profit
AR before tax
ExLH BLATRF
(T#) ®m, Gh)
% HKS'000
F#ET
2018 —E2-N\F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B THARERE 5 (165)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB WA THAREHE (5) 165
2017 —T—+F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB AT LARKERE 5 2,263
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB B THAREHE () (2,263)
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 36. MIKRAREEBEERBE®)
Policies (continued)
Credit risk EERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEEERABRREERTFNTPHET
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish RG - BREBEAEENBE  EREEN
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification FEEERETRSNEFLHELBIEE
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on ZERFF - N REBNEEERS
an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. Each of the HEWHIBERE S - AEEHZEREFR
customers has been attached with a trading limit and any VESRE BHRBEIHLBARIE
excess of the limit must be approved by the general manager BN 7 AKIBHE o N ARE B AT
of the operation unit. Under the tight control of the credit terms ZEH TAHFENEEZ EE2EHE
and detailed assessment of the creditworthiness of individual T AR E 2 ERE R R o
customers, the Group's exposure to bad debts is maintained as
minimal.
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 BE2E—_E—N\E+=-_A=+—HLEE
December 2018 BABEBREFELDH
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum TRETNENAEECZEBRRNEZEZ
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, ENBEAEERKE  ZEERREIEERE
which is mainly based on past due information unless other N-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H:aELaE
information is available without undue cost or effort, and B (BRIFEMERBENETNERAR
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2018. The AR AR RS ) AR FRDEDEE -
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial 2 eHEACREENRERE
assets.
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8A RS
REFE 2HRMEEFE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1ER EyY E3[H {7 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEx FET FEx FET
Trade receivables* e E SR - - - 75,240 75,240
Financial assets included in FARRRE  ZER
prepayments, deposits and other ~ EtiENFBEN S BEE
receivables
— Normal** —ER* 42,597 - - - 42,597
— Doubtful** — REE# - - _ _ _
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY
— Not yet past due —HARBH 158,414 - - - 158,414
201,011 - - 75,240 276,251
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36.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018 (continued)

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered to
be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
"doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21
to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet all
contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The Group's
objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy, to monitor
liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a contingency
plan for funding to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient
cash to meet its liquidity requirement.

The Group continued to enjoy adequate cash position with
cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$158,414,000 (2017:
HKS$234,711,000) as at 31 December 2018. The Group financed
its operations and investment activities by internally generated
cash flows and bank borrowings. The maturity profile of the
Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as
follows:

36.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

36.

MEEREER
REE SRR )

ZENBUER (#)

Within
1year 1to5years Total
—FR —ZERF £
HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS000
TET T T
2018 —E-N\F
Interest-bearing bank borrowings* s RRITIER* 231,016 223,367 454,383
Trade payables JENE SRR 125,042 - 125,042
Other payables and accruals H b FE 2R TE N PR 2 104,303 - 104,303
460,361 223,367 683,728
2017 —ET—tF
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITER 146,087 196,594 342,681
Trade payables FERTE 5 8RR 56,000 = 56,000
Other payables and accruals H At fE T 2R IE R FEET R 196,175 - 196,175
398,262 196,594 594,856
& At 31 December 2018, included in interest-bearing bank —Z */\i‘l’ A=+—8" &&
borrowings are term loans. The loan agreements contain a fﬁfﬂ NEEEHER  ERH=EE
repayment on-demand clause giving the bank the EREREREEFGH B TRITE
unconditional right to call in the loan at any time and 11%1¢%E%ﬂﬁﬁiémﬂ’wééﬂ Eit - 5t
therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the LB EBERAME  REBHEER
total amount is classified as “on demand”. Notwithstanding the [REREER] - F ﬁﬁiﬂﬂ ®oE
above clause, the directors do not believe that the loans will FEWPRAERBET_EAAZE

be called in its entirety within 12 months, and they consider
that the loans will be repaid in accordance with the maturity
dates as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was
made considering the financial position of the Group, the
Group's compliance with the loan covenants, the lack of
events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with
the terms of the Group's loans, the maturity terms at 31
December 2018 are: HK$171,443,000 (2017: HK$146,087,000)
payable within one year; and HK$282,940,000 (2017:
HK$196,594,000) payable in the second to fifth years, inclusive.

The Group is also exposed to liquidity risk through the granting
of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements.
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36.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to the owners through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance where appropriate. No change was made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which
includes bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company. Equity attributable to owners of the Company
comprises issued share capital and reserves as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total bank borrowings divided by the equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

36.

MERREEEERBE#)

EXER
AREEREEAARRA LB E
B REEEEEERBILEYRE
R ER) R AN EREES
K RBE-B—N\FR-F—+%F
+=B=t+—BIFE EREAZH
B BERR T EE -

AEBEAEEBREKFELTEE
RITERMERRER ABERE - K
REEBANEREBRERREAESES
RITBRBENE BT R o

ARRIEBEER B RRE (BERITE
RBEERIAR R BIRA ABHBHE) 2
BER  -MRMmEMREEABLENT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—tF

HK$’000 HKS000

FHET FAET

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEERITIER 427,059 326,056
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZxA BB A FE(LHERS 2,331,719 2,367,110
Gearing ratio BEBRBLE 18.3% 13.8%
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37. Statement of Financial Position of the 37. XD THBEMRRE
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the

AR RREHARM BRI T -

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NG 3 1,010,013 852,812
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments SN0 43 &
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 69 68
Total current assets MEEERE 112 112
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals Hfth e~ 3R IE K FE R 2B 7,395 7,267
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE (7,283) (7,155)
Net assets BEFE 1,002,730 845,657
EQUITY R
Share capital A AR 4,224 4,224
Reserves (Note) & (HfaE) 998,506 841,433
Total equity 4 ESS 1,002,730 845,657
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37.

Statement of Financial Position of the 37. ARATMBRREF @)
Company (continued)
Note: Wit -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RAREERZNOT :
Share
premium Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
R EEE EXEL REEF @t
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
firzt FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—t&—A—H 369,644 381,248 104,815 855,707
Loss for the year and total FEBERER
comprehensive expense for the year PHAXAHE = = (2698) (2698)
2016 final dividend declared and paid ERREINZE—RF
REARE 14 - - (17916) (17.916)
2017 interim dividend T LERHRE 14 = = (10528) (10528)
Shares issued in lieu of cash dividend BERESREMETORE 29 16,868 - - 16,868
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
and 1 January 2018 +-A=+—-A
k=E-\$-A-H 386,512 381,248 73,673 841,433
Profit for the year and total FRENRER
comprehensive income for the year 2RKAER - - 205,651 205,651
2017 final dividend declared and paid ERREN_E—+F
KERE 14 - - (33,793) (33,793)
2018 nterim dividend ZE-N\FRHRE 14 - - (14,785) (14,785)
At 31 December 2018 RIZ-N\F
+-A=1+—-H 386,512 381,248 230,746 998,506

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
then net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant
to the group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share capital
of the Company issued in exchange therefor and the then existing
10,000,000 shares of HK$S0.01 each credited as fully paid at par. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium and
contributed surplus may be distributed to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

RARNEHBHTIARRRIEEBEHAK
BHEBEARNEREEFEBLARRML
BITEARBRAmEN R IZEEARY
B /910,000,000 i & IS E{E0.01 B ITHY &
BIRERG - BERSEESAGNE  BRDE
EENESAKU SR T ARAGRE R
EREERBRMNBRE AR - NQRNAEEE
EHAREKPEEESE -
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Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

38. FEMBATESR

ARBEEMBARMFELT

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
ML BITRAZ
% MRS R/ EMELR AARELEEADLL TEXK
2018 2017
“B-NF ZT—tF
Embry Asia Limited Hong Kong HKS$100 100 100 Investment holding
ZHRFBNERAR] 30 100787T REER
Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. PRC/ RMB176,200,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("Embry CZ")** Mainland China AR 176,200,000 75 ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHFE (BM) REAR BB ARE (Note) swimwear and sleepwear
(TRFEFM ) = (Hret) SHEREELMRE -
AT KK REEX
Embry S7** PRC/ HK$11,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
ZHIT R+ Mainland China 11,000,000 78 7T ladies’ brassieres, panties,
B, R B AR swimwear and sleepwear
SERBERMRE
Mg KR R EEK
Embry HK Hong Kong Ordinary HK$45,000 100 100 Trading of ladies' brassieres, panties,
BRI B &% *Non-voting deferred swimwear and sleepwear and
HK$4,500,000 property investment
LB 45,0007 T HEERItHE - N
ERRREETER ARMBERRDERE
4,500,000/ 7T
Embry (Macau) Fashion Company Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
Limited (Embry (Macau) JRPY 100,000} % swimwear and sleepwear
Pronto A Vestir, Limitada) EBEZMHERNE - A8 -
LR ORM) FRERA KIS BETR
Embry (Shandong) Garments PRC/ US$18,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
Limited (“Embry SD")** Mainland China 18,000,000 %7 ladies" brassieres, panties,
ZHF (LR) REGR AR RE R EARE swimwear and sleepwear
(TZ=FF LR ]) = REREELMRE -
AFE ~ KK KB
Embry (Shanghai) Company PRC/ HK$238,000,000 100 100 Design, research and development
Limited (“Embry SH")** Mainland China 238,000,000 7 7T and trading of ladies' brassieres,
ZHF (L8 BARA HE B AR panties, swimwear and sleepwear
(I %T%J:/J)** &t R HEREERM
R - g KRR ER
Embry Garments Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
ERELHS 1€7T REER
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38.

39.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

38. FEMELATER (#)
ANREEMBATNSBNOT : (£)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
ML ERTRAR
&5 AR R AR i B 37 32N ANABEREEALL TEXK
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+LF
EGL BVI Uss472 100 100 Investment holding
EERAES 472FETT REZR
Embry International Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
ZHFERERAF EBEAHE E RERK
Gallin Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
HFRBARAF 3 2B REER
Prime Force Advertising Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100 100 Dormant
0 20787T NEE
Whistleblower Limited BVI Uss1 100 100 Holding of trademarks
EERAES 17T HEBR

The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other
than for any financial year during which the net profit of Embry HK
available for dividend exceeds HKS 1,000,000,000,000), no rights to
vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus in
return of capital in a winding-up in respect of the first
HKS500,000,000,000,000.

** Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD and Embry SH are registered as
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law.

Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held

by the Company.
Note:  The registered capital of Embry CZ amounted to
RMB176,200,000, of which RMB153,030,000 was paid up as at
31 December 2017. The Group had the remaining unpaid
capital contribution of RMB23,170,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$27,916,000) as at 31 December 2017. As at
31 December 2018, the registered capital was fully paid up.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 21 March 2019.
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